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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/s Ajanta Soya Limited will be held on 
Friday, 30th September, 2016 at 12.30 P.M. at the Registered Office and Factory Premises of the Company at SP-916, 
Phase III, Industrial Area, Bhiwadi, 301019, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2016 
and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr Abhey Goyal (DIN 02321262), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment.

3.	 To ratify the appointment of M/s Tas Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.10520N) as approved 
by Members at the Twenty third Annual General Meeting as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office until 
the conclusion of Twenty sixth Annual General Meeting, and to fix their remuneration for the financial year ending 
31st March, 2017.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4.	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “Resolved That pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s K.G. Goyal & Associates, 
Cost Accountants, having Firm Registration No. 000024, appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company 
to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2016-17, amounting to Rs. 50,000 
(Rupees Fifty Thousand Only) per annum plus service tax as applicable and reimbursement of out of pocket 
expenses incurred by them in connection with the aforesaid audit, as recommended by the Audit Committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.”

5.	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special 
Resolution:

	 “Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of sections 196, 197, 198 & 203 read with schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Mr Abhey Goyal, Director 
be and is hereby re-appointed as Whole time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from  
1st January 2017 on the following terms and conditions:

	 Terms and Conditions:

	 Remuneration: Gross monthly remuneration not exceeding Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lac only) whether paid 
as salary, allowance(s), perquisites or a combination thereof w.e.f. 1st January, 2017.

	 Provided that the following perquisites will not be included in the aforesaid remuneration:

a.	 Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these either singly or put 
together are not taxable under the Income-tax Act, 1961;

b.	 Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed year of service; and

c.	 Encashment of leave at the end of tenure.

Provided further that payment/ re-imbursement of telephone and/ or mobile phone(s) bills, conveyance, fuel 
expenses or other out of pocket expenses incurred in course of the official duties will not be included in the 
aforesaid remuneration.

Resolved further that in the event of loss, absence or inadequacy of profits, the aforesaid remuneration shall be 
the minimum remuneration.

Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company (including any committee/sub-committee of the Board) 
be and is hereby authorised to assign and delegate, from time to time, such work, duties, power and authorities 
to the Whole Time Director as it may deem fit and proper.

Resolved further that the Board of Directors and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company 
be and are hereby severally authorised to fix such remuneration and to work out various components of the 
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remuneration package as it may deem fit and proper within the overall limits of the remuneration as approved above.

Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company (including any committee/sub-committee of the 
Board) be and is hereby authorised to take all necessary steps to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

Regd. Office:	 By order of the board
SP-916, Phase III,	 For Ajanta Soya Limited
Industrial Area, Bhiwadi, 301019,
Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan	 Sushil Goyal
			   DIN: 00125275
			   Managing Director
			   Address: 
			   House No. 42-A,
Date: 13th August, 2016	 Road No. 78, West Punjabi Bagh,
Place: New Delhi	 New Delhi -  110 026

NOTES

1.	 An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of item no. 4 & 5 of the 
notice set out above is annexed herewith.

2.	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF 
THE COMPANY.  A BLANK FORM OF PROXY IS ENCLOSED HEREWITH AND, IF INTENDED TO BE USED, IT 
SHOULD BE RETURNED DULY COMPLETED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS 
THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE SCHEDULED TIME OF THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING.

3.	 A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY IN NUMBER AND 
HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 
CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. HOWEVER, A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE 
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY 
AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

4.	 Every member entitled to vote at the meeting, or on any resolution to be moved thereat, shall be entitled during 
the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the 
conclusion of the meeting, to inspect the proxies lodged, at any time during the business hours of the company, 
provided not less than three days’ notice in writing of the intention so to inspect is given to the company. 

5.	 The Share Transfer Books and Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 24th 
September, 2016 to Friday, 30th September, 2016 (both days inclusive).

6.	 A.	 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify/send the following to the Registrar & Transfer 
Agent (RTA) of the Company M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt Ltd., D-153/A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial 
Area, Phase-I, New Delhi- 110 020; Phone No. 011-26812682-83:-

		  i)	 their bank account details in order to receive payment of dividend through electronic mode,

		  ii)	 their email id, in case the same have not been sent earlier, for the purpose of receiving the 
communication electronically,

		  iii)	 any change in their address/e-mail id/ECS mandate/ bank details, share certificate(s), held in multiple 
accounts in identical names or joint accounts in the same order of names, for consolidation of such 
shareholding into one account.

	 B.	 Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to notify to their Depository Participant:

		  i) 	 their email id.

		  ii) 	 all changes with respect to their address, email id, ECS mandate and bank details.

	 C.	 Kindly note that as per SEBI Circular CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 dated March 21, 2013 it is mandatory for the 
company to print the bank account details of the investors in dividend payment instrument. Hence, you are 
requested to register/update your correct bank account details with the Company/RTA/Depository Participant, 
as the case may be.

7.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India has notified that the shareholders/ transferee of shares (including 
joint holders) holding shares in physical form are required to furnish a certified copy of their Income Tax Permanent 
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Account Number (PAN) card to the Company / RTA while transacting in the securities market including transfer, 
transmission or any other corporate action. Accordingly, all the shareholders/ transferee of shares (including joint 
holders) in physical form are requested to furnish a certified copy of their PAN Card to the company/ RTA while 
transacting in the securities market including transfer, transmission or any other corporate action.

8.	 The shares of the Company are under compulsory Demat trading. Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to convert their shares into dematerialized form in their own interest and convenience purpose.

9.	 In accordance with section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 service of documents on members by a company is 
allowed through electronic mode. Accordingly, as a part of Green Initiative, soft copy of the Annual Report for the 
year ended March 31, 2016 has been sent to all the members whose email address(es) are registered with the 
Company/Depository Participant(s) unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. Further, in 
terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/7/2011 dated 05.10.2011 the hard copies of Annual Report have been 
sent to all other members who have not registered their email address(es). Members, who have not yet registered 
their email address with the Company/RTA/Depository Participant, are requested to do the same at the earliest 
by submitting duly filled in “e-Communication Registration Form” (available on our website “www.ajantasoya.com” 
in Investor Relation) to the Company/RTA. Members can also submit their form along with Attendance Slip at the 
Registration Counter at AGM. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to register their email 
address with their Depository Participant only. Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to 
receive such communication in physical form, upon receipt of request for the same, free of cost. The Notice of the 
25th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2015-16 will also be available on the Company’s website 
www.ajantasoya.com for download by the members. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be 
available at the Company’s Registered Office for inspection during business hours. 

10.	 The Shareholders/Proxies are requested to produce at the Registration Counter(s) the attendance slip duly 
completed and signed, for admission to the meeting hall. However, in case of non-receipt of Notice of Annual 
General Meeting, members are requested to write to the Company at its registered office for issuing the duplicate 
of the same or download the same from Company‘s website www.ajantasoya.com.

11.	 In case you have any query relating to the enclosed Annual Accounts you are requested to send the same to the 
Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company at least 10 days before the date of Annual General 
Meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready for replying at the meeting.

12.	 The information required to be provided under the Listing Regulations entered into by the Company with the Stock 
Exchanges regarding the Directors proposed to be reappointed are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance 
forming part of the Annual Report.

13.	 As required under Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings, details in respect of 
directors seeking re-appointment at the AGM, is separately annexed hereto. Directors seeking reappointment have 
furnished requisite declarations undersection 164(2) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
including rules framed thereunder.

14.	 All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the 
Company on all working days between 11.00 am to 1.00 pm up to the date of Annual General Meeting. The Register 
of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel & their Shareholding and the Register of Contracts & Arrangements 
in which directors are interested shall be open for inspection at the meeting to any person having right to attend 
the meeting.

15.	 Voting through electronic means:

	 i)	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, a member may exercise his right to vote by electronic means (e-voting) in 
respect of the resolutions contained in this notice.

	 ii)	 The Company is providing e-voting facility to its members to enable them to cast their votes electronically. 
The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited as the Authorised Agency 
to provide e-voting facilities.

	 iii)	 The Board of Directors have appointed Mr Debabrata Deb Nath, Company Secretary in Whole Time Practice, 
785, Pocket-E, Mayur Vihar-II, Delhi-110 091 as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the e-voting process in a fair 
and transparent manner.

	 iv)	 Members are requested to carefully read the instructions for e-voting before casting their vote.
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	 v)	 The e-voting facility will be available during the following voting period after which the portal will be blocked 
and shall not be available for e-voting :

Commencement of e-voting From 9.00 a.m. (IST) on Tuesday, 27th September, 2016

End of e-voting Upto 5.00 p.m. (IST) on Thursday, 29th September, 2016

vi)	 The cut-off date (i.e. the record date) for the purpose of e-voting is 23th September, 2016. 
	 vii)	 Declaration of Result of e-voting:
		  a)	 The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of their shares in the equity 

capital of the Company as on the cut-off date (i.e. the record date).
		  b)	 The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence 

of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and will make a Scrutinizer’s Report 
of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

		  c)	 The Scrutinizer‘s decision on the validity of the vote shall be final and binding.
		  d)	 The Results on resolutions shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company and the resolutions 

will be deemed to be passed on the AGM date subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in 
favour of the resolutions.

		  e)	 The result declared along with the Scrutinizer‘s report shall be placed on the website of the Company 
(www.ajantasoya.com) within 3 (three) days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM and communicated 
to the Stock Exchanges where the Company shares are listed.

	 viii)	 The procedure and instructions for e-voting are given separately with this Annual Report.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4  
The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment 
and remuneration of M/s K.G. Goyal & Associates, Cost Accountants, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017. In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the 
Cost Auditor is required to be ratified by the members of the Company.  Accordingly, the members are requested to ratify 
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year 2016-17 
as set out in the resolution for the aforesaid services to be rendered by them. 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company (including relatives of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel) are in any way, whether financially or otherwise, concerned or interested, in the said resolution.
The Board of Directors recommend the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the 
members.

Item No.5
Mr. Abhey Goyal was re-appointed as a Whole Time Director of the Company for a period of 5 years w.e.f. 1st January, 
2012 on the remuneration and other terms and conditions as approved by the members of the Company in the Annual 
General Meeting held on 30th September, 2011.
As the existing tenure of Mr. Abhey Goyal as Whole Time Director of the Company will expire on 31st December 2016 
the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 13th August, 2016 has decided and recommended for his 
re-appointment for a further period of Three years w.e.f. 1st January, 2017.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board in its meeting held on 13th August, 2016 has considered 
and approved the aforesaid re-appointment and remuneration of Mr. Abhey Goyal.

I.	 GENERAL INFORMATION

(1) Nature of Industry Ajanta Soya Limited is engaged in the business of 
manufacturing of Vanaspati Oil and Refined Oil 

(2) Date or expected date of commencement of 
commercial production

The Company is already in existence and is in 
operation since February, 1992

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of 
commencement of activities as per project approved 
by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus

Not Applicable

(4) Financial Performance of the Company for last 2 years is given below:
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Particulars Financial Year ended

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

(Amount in Rs. lacs)

Total Income 58249.27 55,456.93

Total Expenditure 57541.37 55232.19

Profit before tax 707.90 224.74

Provision for tax 198.92 (29.88)

Profit after tax 508.98 254.62

Paid-up Share Capital 1,550.00 1,550.00

Reserves and Surplus (excluding revaluation reserve) 1,628.52 1,119.54

(5) Export performance and net foreign exchange 
collaborations

The Company is not in exports business.

(6) Foreign investments or collaborators, if any Nil

II.	 INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE

(1) Background details Mr Abhey Goyal has been the Whole time Director of the Company for 
more than Seven years. He is instrumental in the growth of our Company 
over the years.

He is having more than 7 years of experience in trading of oil, real estate 
and administration.

(2) Past remuneration Monthly Salary: Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh) only whether paid as 
Salary, allowance(s) perquisites or a combination thereof. 

Provided that the following perquisites will not be included in the aforesaid 
remuneration:

a.     Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund 
to the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under 
the Income-tax Act, 1961;

b.    Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month’s salary for 
each completed year of service; and

c.    Encashment of leave at the end of tenure.

Provided further that payment/ re-imbursement of telephone and/ or 
mobile phone(s) bills, conveyance, fuel expenses or other out of pocket 
expenses incurred in course of the official duties will not be included in 
the aforesaid remuneration.

In the event of loss, absence or inadequacy of profits, the aforesaid 
remuneration shall be the minimum remuneration. 

(3) Recognition or awards Mr Abhey Goyal is a man of rich experience in trading of oil, real estate 
and administration. 

(4) Job profile and his suitability Mr Abhey Goyal, being the whole time Director of the Company is 
entrusted with substantial powers in relation to normal business matters. 
He is having rich experience of over 7 years of experience in trading of 
oil, real estate and administration.
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(5) Remuneration proposed Monthly Salary: Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh) only whether paid as 
Salary, allowance(s) perquisites or a combination thereof.  

Provided that the following perquisites will not be included in the aforesaid 
remuneration:
a.     Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund 

to the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under 
the Income-tax Act, 1961;

b.     Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month’s salary for 
each completed year of service; and

c.     Encashment of leave at the end of tenure.
Provided further that payment/ re-imbursement of telephone and/ or 
mobile phone(s) bills, conveyance, fuel expenses or other out of pocket 
expenses incurred in course of the official duties will not be included in 
the aforesaid remuneration.
In the event of loss, absence or inadequacy of profits, the aforesaid 
remuneration shall be the minimum remuneration. 

(6) Comparative remuneration profile 
with respect to industry, size of the 
company, profile of the position 
and person (in case of expatriates 
the relevant details would be w.r.t. 
the country of his origin)

The exact figures are not readily available. However, the proposed 
remuneration is reasonably justified in comparison with the general 
market trends and remuneration package of top-level managerial persons 
having comparative qualifications and experience.

(7) Pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the company, or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any

The appointee is the promoter of the Company.  Save as the managerial 
remuneration he does not have any other material pecuniary relationship 
with the Company.

III.	 OTHER INFORMATION

(1) Reasons for loss or inadequate 
profits

The Company is in profit. However fixed remuneration is proposed 
to be paid as minimum remuneration in the event of loss/absence/
inadequacy of profits due to unavoidable circumstances.

(2) Steps taken or proposed to be 
taken for improvement

The Company is taking cost cutting measures and exploring new 
avenues of business to improve profitability.

(3) Expected increase in productivity 
and profits in measurable terms

The company is expected to have improved sales and profitability 
figures in the next financial years.

The members’ approval is required by way of a Special resolution for re-appointment of Mr Abhey Goyal as Whole 
time Director and fixing his remuneration. The Board recommends the proposed resolution for adoption in the 
larger interest of the Company.
The aforesaid explanatory statement for item no. 5 should also be deemed to be notice of the abstract for terms 
of appointment and payment of remuneration to Mr Abhey Goyal as Whole time Director.  
In term of the provision of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, additional disclosure is also given under 
appropriate head(s) in the Corporate Governance report annexed to the director’s report.
Except Mr Abhey Goyal and Mr Sushil Goyal and their relatives, None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company (including relatives of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel) are in any way, whether financially 
or otherwise, concerned or interested, in the said resolution.

Regd.Office:		  By order of the board
SP-916, Phase III, Industrial Area,	 For Ajanta Soya Limited
Bhiwadi, 301019, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan

			   Sushil Goyal
			   DIN: 00125275
			   Managing Director

Date: 13th August, 2016	 Address: House No. 42-A, Road No. 78, 
Place: New Delhi	 West Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi -  110 026
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AJANTA SOYA LIMITED

The Directors hereby present their 25th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company and the financial 
accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

Financial Highlights	 (Amount in Lacs)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Revenue from operations 57911.83 55,266.42

Other Income 337.45 190.51

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 707.90 224.74

Provision for Tax 198.92 (29.88)

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 508.98 254.62

Transfer to Reserve Nil Nil

Reserves and surpluses 1628.52 1119.54

Earning per share 3.28 1.64

Company Performance

During the year under review total income of the Company was Rs. 58249.27 Lac as against Rs. 55,456.93 Lac in the 
previous year. The Company was able to earn profit after tax for the year of Rs. 508.98 Lacs against a profit after tax of 
Rs. 254.62 Lacs in the previous year. Your Directors are putting in their best efforts to improve the performance of the 
Company.

Statement of Company’s Affair

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Vanaspati and Refined Oil with shortening products (bakery 
& biscuit). During the year company has produced 1,06,271.921 MT of Vanaspati/Refined Oil as against 89,472.406 
MT in the previous year.

The most popular brands of Vanaspati/refined oil are “Dhruv” and “Anchal”,  both of which enjoy a considerable market share.

Detailed information on the operations of the Company and details on the state of affairs of the Company are covered 
in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report attached to this report.

Change in nature of Business of the Company

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

Material Changes etc.

Save as mentioned elsewhere in this Report, no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of 
the Company have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company-31st March, 2016 and the date of 
this Report.

Dividend

The Board of Directors of your Company has decided to retain and plough back the profits into the business of the 
Company, thus no dividend is being recommended for this year.

Share Capital

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2016 was 15.50 crores. During the year under review, the Company 
has not issued any shares. The Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights. It has neither issued 
employee stock options nor sweat equity shares and does not have any scheme to fund its employees to purchase the 
shares of the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under 
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are as under below.
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Detail of Investment as on 31st March, 2016

Name of Company Amount (INR)

- DG Estates Pvt. Ltd 14,725,000 

- Dhruv Globals Limited 3,680,500 

- Ajanta Realtech Pvt Ltd 13,110,000 

Investments in Mutual Funds
- LIC of India - Profit Plus Growth Fund 1,357,000 

Investments in Mutual Funds
SBI Mag Insta Cash Fund Liquid Floater Regular Plan 36,268,473 

Investments in Mutual Funds
SBI Premium Liquid Fund - Regular Plan 150,000,000

Detail of Guarantee as on 31st March, 2016

Name of Company Amount (INR)

Guarantee issued in favour of bank on behalf of Dhruv Globals Limited  698,000,000

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2016, no Loan u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 was made by the Company.

Disclosure on Deposit under Chapter V

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the Financial Year 2015-16 in terms of Chapter 
V of the Companies Act, 2013.

Report on Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture companies

The Company has no subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures companies.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 the details of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are 
attached as ‘Annexure 1’which forms part of this report.

Listing

At present, the equity shares of the Company are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE). The annual listing fees 
for the financial year 2016-17 to BSE has been paid.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is all about ethical conduct, openness, integrity and accountability of an enterprise. Good Corporate 
Governance involves a commitment of the Company to run the business in a legal, ethical and transparent manner and 
runs from the top and permeates throughout the organization. It involves a set of relationships between a company’s 
management, its Board, shareholders and Stakeholders. It is a key element in improving the economic efficiency of 
the enterprise. Credibility offered by Corporate Governance helps in improving the confidence of the investors – both 
domestic and foreign, and establishing productive and lasting business relationship with all stakeholders. 

At ASL Corporate Governance is more a way of business life than a mere legal obligation. Strong governance practices 
of the Company have been rewarded in terms of improved share valuations, stakeholder`s confidence, improved market 
capitalization, credit ratings, etc. 

A certificate from Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated 
under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is attached in the Corporate Governance Report and forms part of this report.

Certificate of the CEO/CFO, inter-alia, confirming the correctness of the financial statements, compliance with Company`s 
Code of Conduct, adequacy of the internal control measures and reporting of matters to the auditors and the Audit 
committee in terms of Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations is attached in the Corporate Governance report, and 
forms part of this report.
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Credit Rating

During the year CRISIL have reaffirmed/issued the following ratings to the Company:

Long-Term Rating CRISIL BBB-/Stable (Upgraded from CRISIL BB+/Stable)

Short-Term Rating CRISIL A3 (Upgraded from CRISIL A4+)

Directors

In Pursuant to Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, one-third of such of 
the Directors as are liable to retire by rotation, shall retire every year and, if eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment 
at every AGM. Consequently, Mr Abhey Goyal, Whole Time Director will retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM, and being 
eligible, offer himself for re-appointment in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The term of appointment of Mr Abhey Goyal as Whole Time Director will end on 31st December, 2016. Further, on the 
recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company had in its meeting 
held on August 13, 2016, re-appointed Mr Abhey Goyal (DIN: 02321262) as a Whole time Director for a period of 3 
years with effect from January 1, 2017, subject to the approval of shareholders in their general meeting. The terms and 
conditions for his re-appointment are contained in the explanatory statement forming part of the notice of the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting.

The brief resumes of the Directors who are to be appointed/ re-appointed in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, 
the nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, names of companies in which they have held directorships, 
committee memberships/chairmanships and their shareholding, etc. are furnished in Corporate Governance Report 
forming part of the Annual Report.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to statement on declaration given 
by Independent Directors under Section 149(6) of the Act, the Board hereby confirms that all the Independent Directors 
of the Company have given a declaration and have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as provided 
in the said Section 149(6).

Key Managerial Personnel

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in the Company as per Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
as follows:

Name Designation

Mr Sushil Goyal Managing Director

Mr Abhey Goyal Whole Time Director

Mr Jai Gopal Sharma Chief Financial Officer

Mr Kapil Company Secretary

During the year Ms Priya Pandey was resigned as Company Secretary w.e.f. May 19, 2015 and Mr Kapil was appointed 
as Company Secretary w.e.f. May 30, 2015 of the Company.

Policy on Directors appointment and Policy on remuneration

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(e) and Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the policy on 
appointment of Board members including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a 
Director and the policy on remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees is attached as ‘Annexure 2’respectively, 
which forms part of this report.

Particulars of remuneration of Directors/ KMP/Employees

There are no employees who are in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule5(1) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:
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Sl 
No.

Particulars

(i) The Ratio of the remuneration of each 
Director to the median remuneration 
of the employees of the Company for 
the financial year.

Name of the Director Total Remuneration Ratio to the Median

Mr Sushil Goyal 30,00,000 19

Mr Abhey Goyal 12,00,000 8

(ii) The percentage inc rease in 
remuneration of each Director, Chief 
Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary in the 
financial year.

Name % of Increase

Mr Sushil Goyal (Managing Director) 7%

Mr Abhey Goyal (whole Time Director) Nil

Mr Jai Gopal Sharma (CFO) 9%

Ms Priya Pandey (Company Secretary)* Nil

Mr Kapil (Company Secretary)** Nil

*Resigned w.e.f. 19th May, 2015
** Appointed w.e.f. 30th May, 2015

(iii) The percentage increase in the 
median remuneration of employees 
in the financial year.

The percentage increase in the Median Remuneration during the 
financial year is 8% This has been arrived at by comparing the median 
remuneration of the cost to the company as on 31st March, 2015 and the 
median remuneration of the cost to the Company as on 31st March, 2016.

(iv) The number of permanent employees 
on the rolls of the company.

The total number of permanent employee of Ajanta Soya Limited as on 
31st March, 2016 was 99 (Ninety Nine).

(v) Average percentile increase already 
made in the salaries of employees 
other than the managerial personnel 
in the last financial year and its 
comparison with the percentile 
i nc rease  i n  t he  manager ia l 
remuneration and justification 
thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances 
for increase in the managerial 
remuneration.

The average % increase in salary was 9% for all employees who went 
through the compensation review cycle in the year. The compensation 
decisions for each year are taken after considering some parameters 
such as comparison of salaries at various levels with benchmark data 
and the approved compensation budget as per the financial plan for 
the financial year. 

The average % increase for managerial personnel as their salaries were 
lower as compared to the benchmark data.

(Vi) I t  i s  h e re by  a f f i r m e d  t h a t 
the remuneration is as per the 
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that 
the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
senior Management is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Number of Meetings of the Board	

During the Financial Year 2015-16, 9 (Nine) number of Board meetings were held. For details there of kindly refer to the 
section Board of Directors in the Corporate Governance Report.

Performance Evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors
Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges, the 
Board, in consultation with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework containing, inter-
alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the Company, its Committees and Individual Directors, 
including Independent Directors.
A structured questionnaire has been prepared, covering various aspects of the functioning of the Board and its Committee, 
such as, adequacy of the constitution and composition of the Board and its Committees, matters addressed in the Board 
and Committee meetings, processes followed at the meeting, Board`s focus, regulatory compliances and Corporate 
Governance, etc. Similarly, for evaluation of Individual Director’s performance, the questionnaire covers various aspects like 
his/her profile, contribution in Board and Committee meetings, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations, 
regulatory compliances and governance, etc.
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Board members had submitted their response on a scale of 5 (excellent) – 1 (poor) for evaluating the entire Board, 
respective Committees of which they are members and of their peer Board members, including Chairman of the Board.

The Independent Directors had met separately without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and the members 
of management and discussed, inter-alia, the performance of non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole and the 
performance of the Chairman of the Company after taking into consideration the views of executive and Non-Executive 
Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also carried out evaluation of every Director`s performance. The 
performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors have been done by the entire Board, excluding the Director 
being evaluated. On the basis of performance evaluation done by the Board, it shall be determined whether to extend 
or continue their term of appointment, whenever the respective term expires. The Directors expressed their satisfaction 
with the evaluation process.

Composition of Audit Committee

As on 31st March, 2016, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises the following directors:

Mr Harsh Chander Kansal–Chairman (Independent Director)

Mr Hemant Kumar Bansal-Member (Independent Director)

Mr Abhey Goyal- Member (Executive and Promoter Director)

Further, all recommendations of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors.

Statutory Auditors and their Report

The Auditors, M/s Tas Associates, Chartered Accountants, were appointed with your approval at the 23rd AGM to hold 
such office till the conclusion of the 26thAGM. The Board, in terms of Section 139 of the Act, on the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, has recommended for the ratification of the Members the appointment of M/s Tas Associates from 
the conclusion of the ensuing AGM till the conclusion of the 26thAGM.

The Board, in terms of Section 142 of the Act, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has also recommended 
for the approval of the Members the remuneration of M/s Tas Associates for the financial year 2016-17.

There are no observations (including any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer) of the Auditors in 
their Audit Report that may call for any explanation from the Directors. Further, the notes to accounts referred to in the 
Auditor`s Report are self-explanatory.

Cost Auditors and their Report 

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder, M/s K.G. Goyal & Associates, Cost 
Accountants, (Firm`s Membership No. 000024) were re-appointed as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2015- 16 to 
conduct cost audit of the accounts maintained by the Company in respect of the various products prescribed under the 
applicable Cost Audit Rules. The remuneration of Cost Auditors has been approved by the Board of Directors on the 
recommendation of Audit Committee. The requisite resolution for ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors by members 
of the Company has been set out in the Notice of ensuing annual general meeting. They have also been appointed 
as Cost Auditors for financial year 2016-17 by the Board of Directors, upon recommendation of Audit Committee, to 
conduct cost audit of the accounts maintained by the Company in respect of the various products prescribed under the 
applicable Cost Audit Rules. 

Secretarial Auditors and their Report

Your Board, during the year, appointed M/s R & D Company Secretaries, to conduct secretarial audit of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016. The Report of M/s R & D Company Secretaries in terms of Section 204 
of the Act is provided in the ‘Annexure 3’ forming part of this Report.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ Responsibility 
Statement, the Directors confirm:
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a)	 That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b)	 That they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made judgements and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end 
of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c)	 That they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)	 That they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e)	 That they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f)	 That they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR)

The Company does not come under the preview of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate 
Social Responsibility for the financial year 2015-16. 

Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors other than those which are reportable to the Central Government

The Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors or Secretarial Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds to the Audit 
Committee or to the Board of Directors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, including rules made thereunder.

Internal Financial Controls System

According to Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 the term Internal Financial Control (IFC) means the policies 
and procedures adopted by the company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate IFC system which ensures that all assets are safeguarded and 
protected and that the transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly. The Company’s IFC system also 
comprises due compliances with Company`s policies and Standard Operating Procedures (SOP`s) and audit and 
compliance by in-house Internal Audit Division, supplemented by internal audit checks from S. Chand Mittal & Co, the 
Internal Auditors and various transaction auditors. The Internal Auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of internal 
controls and concurrently audit the majority of the transactions in value terms. Independence of the audit and compliance 
is ensured by direct reporting of Internal Audit Division and Internal Auditors to the Audit Committee of the Board.  During 
the year the Internal auditors have also been engaged for providing assistance in improvising IFC framework (including 
preparation of Risk & Control Matrices for various processes) and deployment of Self Assessment Tool.

Details of internal financial control and its adequacy in compliance with the provisions of Rule 8 (5)(viii) of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are included in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms part of this Report.

Risk Management Policy 

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. It establishes various levels of accountability and overview 
within the Company, while vesting identified managers with responsibility for each significant risk.

The Internal Audit Department facilitates the execution of Risk Management Practices in the Company, in the areas of 
risk identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation and reporting. Through this programme, each Function and Unit 
addresses opportunities and risks through a comprehensive approach aligned to the Company’s objectives. The Company 
has laid down procedures to inform the Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors about risk assessment and 
management procedures and status.

Sustainability is embedded in the Corporate Enterprise Risk Management programme, which gives an opportunity to 
increase the effectiveness of risk management practices and for improving business efficiency. The Company’s social 
and environmental policies correlate strongly with the risk management strategy and ultimately the financial performance.

This risk management process, which is facilitated by internal audit, covers risk identification, assessment, analysis and 
mitigation. Incorporating sustainability in the process also helps to align potential exposures with the risk appetite and 
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highlights risks associated with chosen strategies. The current risk slate and the comprehensive risk policy have been 
further redefined during the year. The major risks forming part of the Enterprise Risk Management process are linked 
to the audit universe and are covered as part of the annual risk based audit plan.

Vigil Mechanism Policy

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees 
to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of 
Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the 
mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel 
of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment

During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaint under the provisions of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

Extract of Annual Return

Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as ‘Annexure 4’ to this Report.

Contracts or arrangements with Related Parties under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

With reference to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, all contracts and arrangements with related parties under 
Section 188(1) of the Act, entered by the Company during the financial year, were in the ordinary course of business and 
on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract or arrangement with related 
parties which could be considered ‘material’ according to the policy of the Company on Materiality of Related Party 
Transactions. Accordingly, there are no transactions that are required to be reported in form AOC-2.

With reference to Clause 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, your 
attention is drawn to the Related Party disclosures set out in Note no. 36 of the Financial Statements.

Significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concerns 
status and company`s operations in future

The Company has not received any significant or material orders passed by any regulatory Authority, Court or Tribunal 
which shall impact the going concern status and Company`s operations in future.
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Annexure - 1

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Conservation of Energy

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy Steam Consumption reduced with use of 
double stage vacuum pump.

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources 
of energy 

We are exploring the possibilities of installing 
solar power plant in future.

(iii) Capital investment on Energy Conservation equipment No major capital investment but with in-House 
balancing and minor modifications within 
systems.

Technology Absorption

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption Tanker filling station has been provided with 
auto batching system through mass flow 
meter.

Manual filling machines are being replaced 
with automatic machines, step by step.

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, 
product development or import substitution 

We are getting benefits with new technology 
absorption consistently with respect to cost 
reduction and product development. 

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three 
years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)-

NA

a)	 the details of technology imported; NA

b)	 the year of import; NA

c)	 whether the technology been fully absorbed; NA

d)	 if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not 
taken place, and the reasons thereof; and

NA

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. The product and process development is a 
continuous process, which is being practiced 
without significant expenditure.

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo 

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows 
during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the 
year in terms of actual outflows.

Earnings 38.96 Lac

Outgo 31399.29 Lac
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Annexure - 2

Company’s Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration

Our policy on the appointment and remuneration of directors and key managerial personnel provides a framework based 
on which our human resources management aligns their recruitment plans for the strategic growth of the Company. The 
nomination and remuneration policy is provided herewith pursuant to Section 178(4) of the Companies Act and Clause 
49(VI)(B)4) of the Listing Agreement. The policy is also available on our website www.ajantasoya.com.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, as amended from time to time. This policy 
on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated by 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the Committee) and has been approved by the Board of Directors.

Definitions:

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and 
includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961;

“Key Managerial Personnel” means:

(i)	 Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time Director;

(ii)	 Chief Financial Officer;

(iii)	 Company Secretary; and

(iv)	 Such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the company who are members of its core management team 
excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of management, of rank equivalent to General 
Manager and above, including all functional heads.

Objective:

The objective of the policy is to ensure that

•	 the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of 
the quality required to run the company successfully;

•	 relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

•	 remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed 
and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company 
and its goals.

Role of the Committee:

The role of the NRC will be the following:

•	 To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director.

•	 To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

•	 To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.

•	 To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance.

•	 To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management.

•	 To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management.

•	 To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition, size.

•	 Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing.

•	 To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory 
notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

•	 To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.
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APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

a)	 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person 
for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend his / her appointment, as per 
Company’s Policy.

b)	 A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/she is considered for 
appointment. The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed 
by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the position.

c)	 The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who has attained 
the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the 
age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution.

TERM / TENURE

a)	 Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

	 The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Whole Time 
Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before 
the expiry of term.

b)	 Independent Director:

	 An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company 
and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such 
appointment in the Board’s report.

	 No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years each, 
but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 
Independent Director.

	 Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be 
associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

	 At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such 
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed 
companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company 
or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

EVALUATION

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel yearly 
or at such intervals as may be considered necessary.

REMOVAL

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management 
Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and regulations and the policy 
of the Company.

RETIREMENT

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the 
prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management 
Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the 
Company.

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

1)	 Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors:

a)	 The Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director/ Whole-time Directors, etc. shall be 
governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment 
for the time being in force and the approvals obtained from the Members of the Company.

b)	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of Directors, 
as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors.
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2)	 Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Directors:

a)	 The Non-Executive / Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other remuneration as 
permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be such as may 
be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

b)	 All the remuneration of the Non-Executive/Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for attending 
meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be subject to ceiling/ 
limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for 
the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such as may be recommended by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as 
the case may be.

c)	 An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to participate 
in any share based payment schemes of the Company.

d)	 Any remuneration paid to Non-Executive/Independent Directors for services rendered which are of 
professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of clause (b) 
above if the following conditions are satisfied:

i.	 The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and

ii.	 In the opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice 
of that profession.

e)	 The Compensation Committee of the Company, constituted for the purpose of administering the Employee 
Stock Option/ Purchase Schemes, shall determine the stock options and other share based payments to 
be made to Directors (other than Independent Directors).

3)	 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management:

a)	 The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and 
incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the 
Company’s Policy.

b)	 The Compensation Committee of the Company, constituted for the purpose of administering the Employee 
Stock Option/ Purchase Schemes, shall determine the stock options and other share based payments to 
be made to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

c)	 The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, contribution 
to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from to time.

d)	 The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company and 
performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or at 
such intervals as may be considered appropriate.

IMPLEMENTATION

•	 The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in supplement and 
for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate.

•	 The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members.



18

AJANTA SOYA LIMITED

Annexure - 3

Secretarial Audit Report
For the financial year ended 31st March, 2016

To
The Members 
Ajanta Soya Limited 
SP-916, Phase-III,
Industrial Area, Bhiwadi,
Rajasthan- 301 019 

In terms of the provisions of section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, if any, we have conducted the Secretarial Audit 
of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Ajanta Soya 
Limited, a Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, vide CIN L 15494 RJ 1992 PLC 
016617 and having its registered office at SP-916, Phase-III, Industrial Area, Bhiwadi, Rajasthan- 301 019 (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of the Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016, complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016, according to the provisions of: 

i.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’): 
a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011; 
b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 (upto 14th May 

2015) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (effective 
from 15th May 2015)

c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2009;

d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;  Not applicable as the Company has not issued/ proposed to issue any Employee 
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme during the financial year under review.

e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; Not 
applicable as the Company has not issued any debt securities during the financial year under review.

f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (De-listing of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; Not applicable as 
the Company has not delisted/ proposed to delist its equity shares from any stock exchange during the financial 
year under review. 

h.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 1998; Not applicable as the 
Company has not bought back/ propose to buy back any of its securities during the financial year under review.

vi.	 The management has identified the following laws as specifically applicable to the Company. 
•	 Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and the rules thereunder;
•	 Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006;
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
i.	 Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued 

by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India notified by Central Government and effective from 1st July 2015;
ii.	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that 

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board 
of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent adequately in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes, wherever applicable.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has not entered into/carried out any specific events/actions 
which may have a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

For R&D
Company Secretaries

Place: Delhi	 Debabrata Deb Nath
Date: 13th August, 2016	 Partner
	 FCS No.: 7775; CP No. : 8612
This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

‘Annexure A’
To
The Members 
Ajanta Soya Limited 
SP-916, Phase-III,
Industrial Area, Bhiwadi,
Rajasthan- 301 019 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc.
5.	 The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.
6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
For R&D

Company Secretaries

Place: Delhi	 Debabrata Deb Nath
Date: 13th August, 2016	 Partner
	 FCS No.: 7775; CP No. : 8612
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Annuexure-4 

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016

[Pursuant to section 92(3)of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule12(1)of the
Companies (Management and Administration)Rules,2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i. CIN L15494RJ1992PLC016617

ii. Registration Date 13.01.1992

iii. Name of the Company Ajanta Soya Limited

iv. Category/Sub-Category of the Company Public Company
Company having Share Capital

v. Address of the Registered office and contact 
details

SP-916, Phase -III, Industrial Area, Bhiwadi– 301019, 
Rajasthan.
Tel:- (01493)-511034, 511017. FAX:- (01493)-511023
E-Mail: info@ajantasoya.com, cs@ajantasoya.com
Website: www.ajantasoya.com

vi. Whether listed company Yes, BSE

vii. Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase - I, New Delhi - 110 020 

Contact person:-
Mr VK Rana
Tel:- 011-64732681 to 88. Fax:- 011-26812683
E-mail:-virenr@skylinerta.com

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

	 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. 
No.

Name and Description of main products/ 
services

NIC Code of the Product/ 
service

% to total turnover of 
the company

1 Manufacturing of VanasPati and Refined Oil. 10401 and 10402 99%

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. 
No.

Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/  
Subsidiary
/Associate

%of 
shares 

held

Applicable
Section

Company does not have any Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Company.
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IV.	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i.	 Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
31st March, 2015

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 31st 
March, 2016

% 
Change 
during

The year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

A.	 Promoter

1)	 Indian

a)	 Individual/ HUF 5627757 Nil 5627757 36.32 5727025 Nil 5727025 36.95 0.63

b)	 Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c)	 State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d)	 Bodies Corp 1800000 Nil 1800000 11.62 1800000 Nil 1800000 11.62 Nil

e)	 Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f)	 Any Other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total(A)(1):- 7427757 Nil 7427757 47.94 7527025 Nil 7527025 48.57 0.63

2)	 Foreign

g)	 NRIs-Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

h)	 Other-Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

i)	Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

j)	Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

k)	 Any Other…. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total(A)(2):- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total Shareholding 
of Promoter (A)=(A)
(1)+(A)(2)

7427757 Nil 7427757 47.94 7527025 Nil 7527025 48.57 0.63

B. Public

Shareholding

1.	 Institutions

a)	 Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b)	 Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c)	 Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d)	 State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e)	 Ven tu re  Cap i ta l 

Funds

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f)	 Insurance Compa-

nies

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

g)	 FIIs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

h)	 Fore ign Venture 

Capital Funds

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

i)	 Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total(B)(1) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

2. Non Institutions

a)	 Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian

(ii) Overseas

2047425 53422 2100847 13.55 1988372 53422 2041794 13.18 (0.37)
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b)	 Individuals
(i) Individual share-
holders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh
(ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

1136310

3044439

1529731

23300

2666041

3067739

17.20

19.80

1082424

3189863

1509004

11500

2591428

3201363

16.72

20.66

(0.48)

0.86

c)	 Others(Specify)

(NRI)

Hindu Undivided Family

Clearing Members

4942

225699

3573

Nil

Nil

Nil

4942

225699

3573

0.03

1.46

0.02

9992

124216

780

Nil

Nil

Nil

9992

124216

780

0.06

0.80

0.01

0.03

(0.66)

(0.01)

Sub-total(B)(2) 6462388 1606453 8068841 52.06 6395647 1573926 7969573 51.43 (0.63)

Total Public
Shareholding (B)=
(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

6462388 1606453 8068841 52.06 6395647 1573926 7969573 51.43 (0.63)

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
&ADRs

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

13890145 1606453 15496598 100 13922672 1573926 15496598 100 Nil

ii	 Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
01st April, 2015

Shareholding at the end of the year 
31st March, 2016

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares 

of the 
company

%of Shares 
Pledged / en-

cumber red to 
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 

of the 
company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encum-
bered to 

total shares

1. Cosmic Al loys And Metals 
Works Private Limited

1800000 11.62 Nil 1800000 11.62 Nil Nil

2. Sangita Goyal* 167031 1.08 Nil 167031 1.08 Nil Nil

3. Sohan Lal Goyal (HUF) 129822 0.84 Nil 129822 0.84 Nil Nil

4. Arvind Goyal (Minor) 73000 0.47 Nil 73000 0.47 Nil Nil

5. Dhruv Goyal (Minor) 93005 0.60 Nil 93005 0.60 Nil Nil

6. Sri Ram Goyal* 310222 2.00 Nil 410370 2.65 Nil 0.65

7. Uma Goyal 475721 3.07 Nil 478921 3.09 Nil 0.02

8. Chanderkala 380000 2.45 Nil 380000 2.45 Nil Nil

9. Sushil Kumar Goyal (HUF) 345122 2.23 Nil 346817 2.24 Nil 0.01

10. Surjee Devi 75800 0.49 Nil 75800 0.49 Nil Nil

11. Ameeta Goyal 525329 3.39 Nil 525329 3.39 Nil Nil

12. Bishan Goyal 524643 3.39 Nil 524643 3.39 Nil Nil

13. Renu Goyal 22600 0.15 Nil 22600 0.15 Nil Nil

14. Bishan Dass Goyal (HUF) 108367 0.70 Nil 108367 0.70 Nil Nil

15. Sohan Lal Goyal 153314 0.99 Nil 153314 0.99 Nil Nil

16. Abhey Goyal 539701 3.48 Nil 540101 3.49 Nil 0.01

17. Disha Goyal 137500 0.89 Nil 123325 0.80 Nil (0.09)

18. Gagan Goyal 355416 2.29 Nil 355416 2.29 Nil Nil

19. Sushil Kumar Goyal 513464 3.31 Nil 513464 3.31 Nil Nil

20. Sri Ram Goyal 697700 4.50 Nil 697700 4.50 Nil Nil

21. Chandni Goyal Nil Nil Nil 8000 0.05 Nil 0.05

Total 7427757 47.94 Nil 7527025 48.57 Nil 0.63

* Shareholding change since last year due to Merging of Multiple Folios there is no purchase or sale of shares 
during the year.
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iii	 Shareholding of Directors and key managerial Personal

S r . 
no

Name of Share holder Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

01.04.2015

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year 

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

1. Sushil Goyal At the beginning of the year 513464 3.31 - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during 
the year

- - - -

At the End of the year 513464 3.31 - -

2. Abhey Goyal At the beginning of the year 539701 3.48 - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during the 
year (31.03.2016)

- - 400 3.49

At the End of the year 540101 3.49 - -

3. Harsh Chander Kansal At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during 
the year 

- - - -

At the End of the year - - - -

4. Hemant Kumar Bansal At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during 
the year 

- - - -

At the End of the year - - - -

5. Sushila Jain At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during 
the year 

- - - -

At the End of the year - - - -

6. Priya Pandey 
(Company Secretary)*

At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during 
the year 

- - - -

At the End of the year - - - -

7. Kapil  
(Company Secretary)**

At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during 
the year 

- - - -

At the End of the year - - - -

8. Jai Gopal Sharma 
(CFO)

At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during 
the year 

- - - -

At the End of the year - - - -

*Resigned w.e.f. 19th May, 2015
** Appointed w.e.f. 30th May, 2015
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	 iv.	Change in Promoters’ Shareholding(please specify, if there is no change) for the financial year 01.04.2015 

to 31.03.2016

Sr. 

no

Name of Share holder Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

01.04.2015/end of the year 
31.03.2016

Date Increase/
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason Cumulative Sharehold-
ing during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

1. Abhey Goyal 539701 3.48 31/03/2016 400 Purchase 540101 3.49

540101 3.49 31/03/2016 - - - -

2. Uma Goyal 475721 3.07 30/06/2015 3200 Purchase 478921 3.09

478921 3.09 31/03/2016 - - - -

3. Sushil Goyal (HUF) 345122 2.23 01/05/2015 1695 Purchase 346817 2.24

346817 2.24 31/03/2016 - - - -

4. Disha Goyal 137500 0.89 23/03/2016 (7830) Sale 129670 0.84

28/03/2016 (2301) Sale 127369 0.83

29/03/2016 (3639) Sale 123730 0.80

31/03/2016 (405) Sale 123325 0.80

123325 0.80 31/03/2016 - - - -

5. Chandni Goyal - - 26/02/2016 8000 Purchase 8000 0.05

8000 0.05 31/03/2016 - - - -

v.	 Shareholding pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 

ADRs)

Sr. 

no

Name of Share holder Shareholding at the begin-
ning of the year 01.04.2015/
end of the year (31.03.2016)

Date Increase/
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

1. Harshit Finvest Pvt. Ltd. 1800000 11.62 - - - - -

1800000 11.62 - - - - -

2. Sangeetha S 673130 4.34 01/05/2015 1687 Purchase 674817 4.35

22/05/2015 1000 Purchase 675817 4.36

29/05/2015 776 Purchase 676593 4.37

676593 4.37 - - - - -

3. Sathya S 489965 3.16 - - - - -

489965 3.16 - - - - -

4. Liladhar Sharma 363574 2.35 - - - - -

363574 2.35 - - - - -

5. Nand Lal Sharma 271717 1.75 - - - - -

271717 1.75 - - - - -



AJANTA SOYA LIMITED

25

Sr. 

no

Name of Share holder Shareholding at the begin-
ning of the year 01.04.2015/
end of the year (31.03.2016)

Date Increase/
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

6. Savitha S 270166 1.74 - - - - -

270166 1.74 - - - - -

7. Vinod Sharma 243188 1.57 - - - - -

243188 1.57 - - - - -

8. Annareddy Venkata 
Subba Reddy

165593 1.07 30/06/2015 (93) Sale 165500 1.07

17/07/2015 (5500) Sale 160000 1.03

24/07/2015 225 Purchase 160225 1.03

07/08/2015 (225) Sale 160000 1.03

21/08/2015 209 Purchase 160209 1.03

06/11/2015 2 Purchase 160211 1.03

05/02/2016 1084 Purchase 161295 1.04

12/02/2016 1365 Purchase 162660 1.05

19/02/2016 3300 Purchase 165960 1.07

26/02/2016 4040 Purchase 170000 1.1

170000 1.1 - - - - -

9. Subramanian P - - 07/08/2015 3000 Purchase 3000 0.02

14/08/2015 7520 Purchase 10520 0.07

21/08/2015 1585 Purchase 12105 0.08

28/08/2015 5165 Purchase 17270 0.11

04/09/2015 5620 Purchase 22890 0.15

11/09/2015 11003 Purchase 33893 0.22

18/09/2015 14615 Purchase 48508 0.31

19/09/2015 2000 Purchase 50508 0.33

25/09/2015 2000 Purchase 52508 0.34

30/09/2015 463 Purchase 52971 0.34

09/10/2015 2868 Purchase 55839 0.36

16/10/2015 2000 Purchase 57839 0.37

23/10/2015 1000 Purchase 58839 0.38

30/10/2015 2000 Purchase 60839 0.39

06/11/2015 8355 Purchase 69194 0.45

13/11/2015 4477 Purchase 73671 0.48

20/11/2015 9802 Purchase 83473 0.54

27/11/2015 4368 Purchase 87841 0.57

04/12/2015 1060 Purchase 88901 0.57

11/12/2015 4989 Purchase 93890 0.61

18/12/2015 4000 Purchase 97890 0.63

25/12/2015 9500 Purchase 107390 0.69
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Sr. 

no

Name of Share holder Shareholding at the begin-
ning of the year 01.04.2015/
end of the year (31.03.2016)

Date Increase/
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

31/12/2015 10000 Purchase 117390 0.76

08/01/2016 6458 Purchase 123848 0.8

15/01/2016 11602 Purchase 135450 0.87

29/01/2016 5000 Purchase 140450 0.91

12/02/2016 7000 Purchase 147450 0.95

19/02/2016 1930 Purchase 149380 0.96

26/02/2016 3960 Purchase 153340 0.99

153340 0.99 - - - - -

10. Shanthi General Finance 
P Limited

122630 0.79 01/05/2015 2305 Purchase 124935 0.81

08/05/2015 4000 Purchase 128935 0.83

15/05/2015 555 Purchase 129490 0.84

22/05/2015 8324 Purchase 137814 0.89

29/05/2015 1812 Purchase 139626 0.9

23/10/2015 (1000) Sale 138626 0.89

04/12/2015 1420 Purchase 140046 0.90

140046 0.90 - - - - -

V.	 INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (Amount in Rs.)

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year 01.04.2015
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

16,32,06,659
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

16,32,06,659
Nil
Nil

Total(i+ii+iii) 16,32,06,659 Nil Nil 16,32,06,659

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year
 - Addition
 - Reduction

Nil
3,90,571

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
3,90,571

Net Change 3,90,571 Nil Nil 3,90,571

Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year 31.03.2016
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not due

16,28,16,088
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

16,28,16,088
Nil
Nil

Total (i+ii+iii) 16,28,16,088 Nil Nil 16,28,16,088
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VI.	 Remuneration of Directors And Key Managerial Personnel

A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager 
(Amount in Lacs)

Total
Amount

Sushil Goyal Abhey Goyal

1 Gross salary
(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in 

section17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961

(b)  Value of perquisites u/s17(2)Income-tax 
Act,1961

(c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Incometax Act, 1961

30 12 42

2 Stock Option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission
-   as % of profit
-   others, specify…

-
-

-
-

-
-

5 Others, please specify - - -

6 Total(A) 30 12 42

Ceiling as per the Act Rs.42 Lac per annum by Ordinary Resolution 
for 5 years and complied with other condition.
Rs.84 Lac per annum by Special Resolution 
for 3 years and complied with other condition.
As per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

B.	 Remuneration to other directors:

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
Amount

Independent Directors
·   Fee for attending board committee meetings

·   Commission

·   Others, please specify

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

Total(1) - - - - -

Other Non-Executive Directors
·   Fee for attending board committee meetings
·   Commission
·   Others, please specify

- - - - -

Total(2) - - - - -

Total(B)=(1+2) - - - - -

Total Managerial Remuneration - - - - -

Overall Ceiling as per the Act Not applicable as only sitting fees paid
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C.	 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel (Amount In lacs)

CEO Company
Secretary

CFO Total

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961
(b)  Value of perquisites u/s17(2)Income-tax 

Act,1961
(c)    Profits in lieu of salary under section17(3)

Income-taxAct,1961

-

-

-

2.50*

-

-

3.69

-

-

6.19

-

-

2 Stock Option - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - -

4 Commission
-   as % of profit

-  others, specify…

- - - -

5 Others, please specify - - - -

6 Total - 2.50* 3.69 6.19

*Include salary of Mr. Kapil Company Secretary appointed w.e.f. 30.05.2015 and Ms Priya Pandey resigned 
w.e.f. 19.05.2015

VII.	Penalties/Punishment/Compounding of offences:

Type Section 
of the 
companies 
Act

Brief 
description

Details of Penalty/
Punishment /
Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority[RD
/NCLT/Court]

Appeal made. If 
any(give details)

A.	 Company

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

B.	 Directors

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

C.	 Other Officers In Default

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL



AJANTA SOYA LIMITED

29

Management Discussion and Analysis Report
Cautionary Statement

The management Discussion and Analysis Report may contain certain statements that might be considered forward 
looking. These statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from those 
expressed in the statement as important factors could influence Company’s operations such as Government policies, 
economic development, political factors and such other factors beyond the control of the Company. The Company 
assumes no responsibility to publicly amend any forward-looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent develop-
ments, information or events.

Overview

The most modernized plant for the manufacturing of Vanaspati & Refined oil was established in the year 1993 with the 
STATE OF- THE ART technology of Alfa Level and market trends, the company has never let go of an opportunity to 
expand and modernize, to Thermos, esteemed and renowned suppliers of process plants. With changing technologies 
and keep up with competition and add new products, such as bakery/ biscuit/ puff products. Quality control norms are 
religiously followed at the unit to cater to a wide variety of the customers. With a full-fledged quality control laboratory 
for testing facility, analysis of all incoming materials, intermediate process quality parameters & finished products are 
smoothly done by a team of qualified and experienced technologists/chemists. 

Superior procurement and trading skills, continuous innovation, an endeavor to meet consumer needs and stringent 
quality control standards have enabled AJANTA to emerge as a highly-respected and admired Edible Oil company.

Company is also investing continuously towards energy saving by adopting appropriate technologies as a measure to 
contribute to reduction in industrial pollution.

Industry Structure, Developments and Industrial Outlook

Indian Edible oil Industry has witnessed financial stress due to droughts, rising production costs and cheaper imports 
thus forcing several small firms to shut shop. India imports nearly 67% of its edible oil requirements; the rest is being 
met from domestic production. Area expansion under palm oil fell by over 50% over the last couple of years due to low 
prices of crude palm oil and poor rainfall. Though the duty differential between crude and refined palm oil is 7.5%, edible 
oil sellers are finding it more convenient to import refined palm oil directly from Malaysia and Indonesia and sell it in the 
domestic market thus placing the edible oil processing units to operate at hair line margins or in worst case scenario 
wherein the units are small the operations have become unvailable. The performance of the companies in edible oil 
sector for medium term period will depend upon the demand of CPO in India post recent increase in import duties on 
refined edible oils, movement of domestic edible oil prices, performance of Indian Rupee against US Dollar, anticipated 
sales volumes and profitability margins from the specialty fats business with comprehensive product range including 
bakery shortening’s, chocolate & confectionary fats, ice cream fats and a range of cooking oils.

During the year under review, the international economic situations coupled with fall in commodity prices have impacted 
domestic business sentiments considerably. The landed import prices of vegetable oils in India also moved downward in 
line with the fall in international prices. Low energy prices and international market scenario also had a cascading impact 
on all the other products : Crude palm oil by 23%, Crude Soyabean oil by 10%, while Indian Rupee (with reference to 
USD) by 7%. The steep fall in commodity prices has, however, caused increase in consumption of imported products and 
also led to intense competition on the domestic exportable products and thereby entailed severe pressure on margins.

The long-term outlook of edible oil demand in India is favorable on expectation of increasing population, increase in per 
capita consumption which in turn would be driven by changing lifestyles, growing urbanization, increasing proportion 
of middle-class population and steadily rising affluence levels. The near-term outlook for the edible oil companies is 
expected to be stable on steady edible oil domestic demand and improvement in operating margin due to increasing 
refining operation.

Your Company’s performance for the year 2015-16 may be viewed in the context of the above mentioned economic/
market environment.

Opportunities and Threats

The new age Indian consumer, the organized retail potential which is creating the huge consumption opportunity is by 
far the biggest Opportunity for companies like us. With the aspirational and rich class in India having a better penetration, 
our brand led growth will help the company in both the immediate and long run. Also, with the rural India being revisited 
by marketers through the modern retail (haat) philosophy, the opportunity is huge.

India is also seeing a great increase in life style led diseases like heart ailments and cardio vascular illness which is 
said to rise much higher than other nations; this creates a potential for healthy edible oil. Competition from Indian and 
global players remain a matter of concern and probable threat; while the company is well prepared to tackle such issues 
on an ongoing basis.
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•	The continuing digitization of today’s world presents both an opportunity and a threat. An opportunity because it enables 
the Company to communicate with and deliver to consumers in a far more focused manner than was possible in the 
pre-digital age. However, it is also a threat because it enables smaller competitors to reach out to consumers in a manner 
not possible in the pre-digital age because of the high costs of legacy distribution systems.

Risks and Concerns

Key risks for the edible oils sector include risks from change in import-export regulations; change in the minimum support 
price (MSP) on oilseeds offered by the government; high dependence on monsoons and finally, the risk arising out of 
exchange rate fluctuations. Procurement of oilseeds at the right price and quantity, optimum utilization of processing 
units, their strategic location, a strong brand name and diversification of product offerings are likely to be the key success 
determinants for players.

The policies announced by the Government have been progressive and are expected to remain likewise in future, and 
have generally taken an equitable view towards various stake holders, including domestic farmers, industry, consumers etc.

Your Company continues to place a strong emphasis on the risk management and has successfully introduced and 
adopted various measures for hedging the price fluctuations in order to minimize its impact on profitability. Also, your 
Company has initiated setting-up of a framework to upgrade itself to a robust risk management system. Further Your 
Company is well geared with multi-processing capabilities to cater to the variances and changing consumer preferences. 

Human resource / Industrial relations 

The Company recognizes the importance and contribution of its human resources for its growth and development and 
is committed to the development of its people.

At Ajanta Soya Ltd., equal importance is given to the development of the company’s human resource. ASL has al-
ways recruited the best talent available in the industry – people with years of expertise and experience behind them. 
The Company considers its employees to be the most valuable asset and is committed to provide a conducive work 
environment to enable each individual to fully realize his or her potential. The human resource programmes focus on 
strengthening key areas of Enhancing individual and organization readiness for future challenges. Management is in-
vesting in enhancing technical and managerial skills of employees for building competencies needed for growth plans. 
Our business review & performance improvement process continues to put focus on performance and periodic review 
of each of our businesses and individuals.

The Company has cordial relations with employees and staff. There are no industrial relations problems during the year 
and the Company does not anticipate any material problems on this count in the current year. 

Internal Control Systems and Adequacy

The Company has established internal control systems for ensuring optimum use of resources and safeguarding the 
assets. The Internal Control Systems and procedure are adequate and commensurate with the size of the Company. 
These are routinely tested and certified and which covered all offices, factories and key business areas. The Internal audit 
team reviews the quality of planning and execution of all ongoing projects and activities involving significant expenditure 
to ensure that management controls are adequate to yield “value for money”.  The Internal Control Systems and procedure 
are adequate and commensurate with the size of the Company. These business control procedures ensure efficient use 
and protection of the resources and compliance with the policies, procedures and status.

Product wise Performance

Presently the Company has been dealing in Vanaspati & Refined Oil. The details of the Vanaspati & Refined Oil business 
segment is as follows:

Product Sales

Current Year (2015-16) Previous Year (2014-15)

Quantity (MT) Value
(Rs in Lacs)

Quantity (MT) Value
(Rs in Lacs)

Vanaspati/ Refined Oils 106725.205 57911.83 89472.406 55266.42
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance refers to the set of systems, principles and processes by which a company is governed. They 
provide the guidelines as to how the company can be directed or controlled so as to fulfill its goal and objectives in 
a manner that adds to the value of the company and benefit to all stakeholders in the long term. Stakeholders in this 
case would include everyone ranging from the Board of Directors, management, shareholders to customers, suppliers, 
financiers, employees and society at large. Strong and improved Corporate Governance practices are indispensable in 
today`s competitive world and complex economy.

Ajanta Soya Limited looks at Corporate Governance requirements as an integral part of business strategy which contributes 
to business growth in ethical perspective. Besides complying with the prescribed Corporate Governance Practices as 
per Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 
(hereinafter referred to as `Listing Regulations`), the Company has voluntarily adopted various practices of governance 
in terms of highest ethical and responsible standard of business, globally bench marked. 

This chapter, along with the chapters on Management Discussion and Analysis and Additional Shareholders Information, 
reports, inter-alia Ajanta Soya Limited compliance of Listing Regulations highlighting the additional initiatives taken in 
line with international best practices.

1.	 COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

	 Our Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages attainment of highest levels of accountability, 
transparency, responsibility and fairness in all aspects of its operations. Our business culture and practices are 
founded upon a common set of values that govern our relationships with customers, employees, shareholders, 
suppliers and the communities in which we operate. The Company believes that all its actions must serve the 
underlying goal of enhancing overall shareholder value on a sustained basis.

	 The Company is conscious of its responsibility as a good corporate citizen. The Company values transparency, 
professionalism and accountability.

2.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	 The Company maintains an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The 
Board consists of total Five (5) Directors on 31st March 2016. Mr Sushil Goyal is the Managing Director, Mr Abhey 
Goyal is the Whole Time Director of the Company and three (3) Non-Executive Independent Director including one 
(1) Woman Director. 

	 None of the Directors on the Company’s Board is a Member of more than ten Committees and Chairman of more 
than five Committees (Committees being, Audit Committee and Investors’ Grievance Committee) across all the 
companies in which he is a Director. 

	 Following is the list of Directors and other details as on 31st March, 2016:

Name of the Director 
& Designation

Category No. of positions held in other  
Public Companies1

Board Committee

Membership Chairmanship

Mr Sushil Goyal
Managing Director

Promoter & Executive Nil Nil Nil

Mr Abhey Goyal
Whole Time Director

Promoter & Executive Nil Nil Nil

Mr Hemant Kumar Bansal
Director

Non-Executive & Independent Nil Nil Nil

Mr Harsh Chander Kansal
Director

Non-Executive & Independent 1 2 1

Mrs Sushila Jain
Director

Non-Executive & Independent Nil Nil Nil

1Excludes directorships in Associations, Private, Foreign and Section 25/8 Companies.



32

AJANTA SOYA LIMITED

Directors’ Attendance Record

During the Financial Year 2015-16, Nine (9) meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 30th May, 2015, 13th 
August, 2015, 19th September, 2015, 14th November, 2015, 17th November, 2015, 07th January, 2016, 13th February, 
2016, 10th March, 2016 and 22nd March, 2016. The Board was duly supplied with the agenda of the meetings 
incorporating all material information for facilitating meaningful and focused discussions at the meeting. The 
intervening period between the Board Meetings was well within the maximum time gap of one hundred and twenty 
days as stipulated under Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard. 

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

Details of attendance of Directors in the Board meeting during the financial year 2015-16 are as under:

Name of the Director No. of Board 
Meeting

Attendance at the 
Board Meeting

Whether attended 
Last AGM

Mr Sushil Goyal 9 9 Yes

Mr Abhey Goyal 9 9 Yes

Mr Harsh Chander Kansal 9 9 Yes

Mr Hemant Kumar Bansal 9 9 No

Mrs Sushila Jain 9 9 No

Disclosure of relationships between Directors inter-se:

Mr. Abhey Goyal Whole time Director on the Board of Directors is the son of Mr. Sushil Goyal Managing Director.

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors:

None of the Non-Executive Directors holds any share in the Company.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year, one meeting of the Independent Directors was held on November 17, 2015. The Independent 
Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the performance of non-independent directors, Chairman of the Company and the 
Board as a whole.

The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company, prepared by the 
Company.

The details of the familiarization programme of the Independent Directors are available on the website of the Company 
(www.ajantasoya.com).Web link for the same is http://ajantasoya.com/wp-content/forms/FAMILIARISATION%20
PROGRAMME%20FOR%20IND.%20DIRECTORS.pdf.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING APPOINTMENT & RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRCETORS IN THE ENSUING AGM

Brief particulars of Directors who are appointed/re-appointed in this AGM are as follows:

Particulars Mr Abhey Goyal

DIN 02321262

Father’s Name Mr Sushil Goyal

Date of Birth 31st March, 1987

Address House No. 42-A, Road No. 78, West Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi 
– 110026

Designation Whole time Director

Education Post Graduate in International Business and Finance

Experience He is having more than 7 years of experience in trading of oil, 
real estate and administration. 
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Companies in which holds Directorship* Polo Textiles Private Limited
R.M.S. Traders Private Limited
DG Estates Pvt Ltd
Goyal Infratech Private Limited
Space Realty Infratech Private Limited

Companies in which holds membership of 
committees* 

NIL

Shareholding in the Company  (No. & %) 540101 
3.49%

*excludes Directorships in Associations, Foreign and Section 25/8 Companies.

3.	 COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	 Ajanta Soya Ltd has Three Board level Committees as on 31stMarch, 2016:

a)	 Audit Committee

b)	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

c)	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and fixing the terms of reference for members 
of various Committees. Details on the role and composition of these Committees, including the number of 
meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided below.

A.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 Terms of Reference

	 The audit committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, read with Section 177 of the Act.

	 The Audit Committee shall have the authority to investigate into any matter that may be prescribed and the matters 
listed below and for this purpose the Audit Committee shall have full access to information contained in the records 
of the Company and external professional advice, if necessary:

a.	 To review the Company’s financial reporting process and ensure that the financial statements give a true and 
fair view of the affairs of the Company.

b.	 To review the Company’s audit procedures and techniques.

c.	 To review with the management, external and internal procedures and the adequacy of internal control systems.

d.	 To review the quarterly and annual financial statements and submit the same to the Board.

e.	 Any other matter that may be delegated by the Board from time to time. 

	 Composition

As on 31st March, 2016 the Audit Committee of the Company comprises of two Non-Executive Independent Directors 
and one Promoter Director and i.e. Mr Harsh Chander Kansal – as Chairman; Mr Hemant Kumar Bansal and Mr 
Abhey Goyal as the Members of the Committee. 

	 The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee.

	 Meetings & Attendance

The Committee met six (6) times during the Financial Year 2015-2016 on the following dates: 30th May, 2015, 13th 
August, 2015, 14th November, 2015, 17th November, 2015, 13th February, 2016 and 10th March, 2016 Details of 
attendance of Directors in the Audit Committee meeting are as under:

Name of the Director Category Attendance at the Audit 
Committee Meeting

Mr Harsh Chander Kansal-Chairman Non-Executive & Independent Director 6

Mr Hemant Kumar Bansal-Member Non-Executive & Independent Director 6

Mr Abhey Goyal-Member Executive & Promoter Director 6
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B.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

	 Terms of Reference

	 The Remuneration Committee has been constituted to recommend/ review and approve the remuneration payable 
to Managing Director, Whole Time Director or other directors of the Company based on their performance.

	 Composition 

	 The Company has a Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors. As on 31st March, 2016 it comprises of 
three Non-Executive and Independent directors namely Mr Harsh Chander Kansal, Chairman, Mr Hemant Kumar 
Bansal and Mrs Sushila Jain as Members. 

	 The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee.

Meetings & Attendance

There was no Remuneration Committee meeting held during the Financial Year 2015-2016.

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors

The performance evaluation of independent directors is done by the entire Board of Directors (excluding the director 
being evaluated). On the basis of the report of performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or 
continue the term of appointment of the independent directors. The Board is evaluated on the basis of the following 
attributes namely, guiding strategy, nurturing leaders, aligning incentives, managing risks, enhancing the brand 
and enabling governance.

Remuneration Policy of the Company

The remuneration policy of the Company is directed towards rewarding performance. The Managing Director and 
the Whole Time Director of the Company are entitled for payment of Remuneration as decided by the Board and 
approved by the members as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Directors are also entitled for the sitting fee for attending Board/ Committee Meeting except the Managing Director 
and Whole Time Director. 

However, all the Non-executive Directors of the Company have waived the sitting fee payable to them for attending 
Board/ Committee Meeting of the Company.

The Remuneration Policy and the evaluation criteria have been disclosed in the Director’s Report which forms part 
of the Annual Report.

Details of the Directors’ Remuneration for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016

Name of Director Sitting 
fees

Salaries &  
Perquisites

(In Rs.)

Commission,  
Bonus Exgratia

Total 
Amount
(In Rs.)

No. of Shares 
held & %

Mr Sushil Goyal Nil 30,00,000 Nil 30,00,000 513464
3.31%

Mr Abhey Goyal Nil 12,00,000 Nil 12,00,000 540101  
3.49%

Mr Harsh Chander Kansal Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr Hemant Kumar Bansal Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mrs Sushila Jain Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

C.	 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
	 Terms of Reference
	 The Company has constituted a “Stakeholders Relationship Committee” to look into redressal of Shareholder’s / 

investors’ complaints, to approve share transfer, share transmission etc and to oversee all matters connected with 
the Shareholders. 

	 Composition
	 As on 31st March, 2016, Committee comprises of two Non-Executive and Independent directors and one promoter 

director namely: Mr Harsh Chander Kansal, Chairman, Mr Hemant Kumar Bansal and Mr Abhey Goyal as 
Members. 
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	 Mr Kapil Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.

	 The committee met 11 (Eleven) times during the year on 10th April 2015, 11th May, 2015, 10th June, 2015, 10th 
August, 2015, 15th September, 2015, 10th October, 2015, 10th November, 2015, 10th December, 2015, 11th January, 
2016, 10th February, 2016 and 10th March, 2016

Name of the Director Category Attendance at the Audit 
Committee Meeting

Mr Harsh Chander Kansal
Chairman

Non-executive & Independent Director 11

Mr Hemant Kumar Bansal
Member

Non-executive & Independent Director 11

Mr Abhey Goyal
Member

Executive & Promoter Director 11

Investor Grievance Redressal

During the year, the Company received 3 (Three) complaints from the shareholders. All the complaints were 
resolved. There were no pending complaints from any shareholder as on 31stMarch 2016.

4.	 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a)	 Annual General Meetings: Particulars of past three Annual General Meetings of the Company:

Year Date Venue Time No of Special  
Resolution passed

2013 28.09.2013 SP-916, RIICO Industrial Area Phase – III
Bhiwadi-301 019, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan

12.30 P.M. Nil

2014 27.09.2014 SP-916, RIICO Industrial Area Phase – III
Bhiwadi-301 019, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan

12.30 P.M. •	   Authorisation to Board 
u/s 180(1)(a)

•	   Authorisation to Board 
u/s 180(1)(c)

•	 Re-appointment of 
Mr. Sushil Goyal as 
Managing Director

2015 26.09.2015 SP-916, RIICO Industrial Area Phase – III
Bhiwadi-301 019, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan

12.30 P.M. Nil

b)	 During the year under review, no special resolution has been passed through the exercise of postal ballot.

c)	 No special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot at the AGM to be held on September 
30, 2016

5.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a)	  At present quarterly/ half-yearly reports are not being sent to each household of shareholders.

b)	 The Quarterly / half-yearly / Annual Accounts results: The Company’s quarterly results are published in 
Financial Express (English)(Mumbai), Financial Express (English)(Delhi) & Hari Bhoomi (Hindi)(Delhi) and 
are displayed on its website (www.ajantasoya.com). 

c)	 Website:The Company’s website (www.ajantasoya.com) contains a separate dedicated section ‘Investor 
Relations’ where shareholders’ information is available. 

d)	 Annual Report: The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statement, Directors’ Report, 
Auditors’ Report and other important information is circulated to members and others entitled thereto. The 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report forms part of the Annual Report and is displayed on 
the Company’s website (www.ajantasoya.com).

e)	 SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The investor complaints are processed in a Centralised 
web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are: Centralised database of all 
complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by 
investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status.
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6.	 GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

(i)	 Annual General Meeting
Day & Date	 Time	 Venue
Friday, September 30, 2016	 12.30 P.M.	 SP-916, RIICO Industrial Area, Phase III, 
		  Bhiwadi-301 019, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan

(ii)	 Financial Calendar

Events Tentative time frame

Financial Reporting for the first quarter ended 30th June, 2016 On 13th August, 2016 (actual)

Financial Reporting for the second quarter ending 30th

September, 2016
On or before by 14th November 2016

Financial Reporting for the third quarter ending 31st December, 
2016

On or before by 14th February 2017

Financial Reporting for the fourth quarter ending 31st March, 
2017

On or before by 30th May 2017 (Audited)

(iii)	 Dates of Book Closure	 		  Saturday, 24th September 2016 to 

							      Friday, 30th September 2016

							      (both days inclusive)

(iv)	 Dividend Payment Date			   Not applicable

(v)	 Listing on Stock Exchanges: The Shares of the Company is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange 

Address:-Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street Mumbai 400 001

	 The annual listing fees for the Financial Year 2016-17 to BSE have been paid by the Company within the 
stipulated time.

(vi)	 Stock Code/ Symbol: 519216 at the Bombay Stock Exchange.

(vii)	Market Price Data: High/ low of market price of the Company’s equity shares traded on BSE during the last 

financial year were as follows:

Month High 
Price

Low  
Price

No. of  
Shares

Month High  
Price

Low  
Price

No. of  
Shares

Apr 15 20.25 13 65310 Oct 15 28.9 20 84926

May 15 20.9 15.3 51772 Nov 15 26.7 20.05 76809

Jun 15 21 15.6 43437 Dec 15 25.1 21.3 78499

Jul 15 29.25 16.5 244877 Jan 16 25.95 14.4 147232

Aug 15 28 19.7 117127 Feb 16 17.5 11.5 124189

Sep 15 23.2 18.35 62138 Mar 16 15.17 11.12 45877

Source: www.bseindia.com
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(viii)	Registrar and Share Transfer Agent & Share Transfer System

	 The company has appointed M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt Ltd, as its Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent to carry out the process of share transfer in physical form and also demat work of the Company. The 
Company has authorised the Registrar and Transfer Agent to approve and execute transfer and transmission 
of shares subject to a maximum holding of any one person together with the existing holding not exceeding 
1% of total paid up equity share capital of the Company at the time of such transfer. Any transfer, transmission 
in excess of aforesaid limit of 1% is given effect by the Investor Grievance Committee of the Company. All 
correspondence with regard to share transfers and matters related therewith may directly be addressed to the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents at the address given below: 

Particulars Skyline Financial Services Pvt Ltd

Contact Person Mr V K Rana

Address D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase – I
New Delhi-110 020

Telephone No. 011-30857575 (10 Lines) 

Fax No. Fax: 011-30857562

E mail admin@skylinerta.com

The Company’s shares are traded in the Stock Exchange, Mumbai compulsorily in Demat mode. Physical 
shares which are lodged with the Registrar & Transfer Agent or/ Company for transfer are processed and 
returned to the shareholders duly transferred within the time stipulated under relevant provisions of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, subject to the documents being in order.

(ix)	 Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2016:

Shareholding of Nominal 
Value of

Shareholders Share Amount

Rs. Rs. Number % to Total In Rs. % to Total

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

Up to 5,000 14320 96.17 18930380 12.22

5,001 10000 303 2.03 2395910 1.55

10,001 20000 116 0.78 1808070 1.17

20,001 30000 33 0.22 820240 0.53

30,001 40000 23 0.15 839910 0.54

40,001 50000 22 0.15 1012220 0.65

50,001 100000 18 0.12 1247130 0.80

100001 and Above 56 0.38 127912120 82.54

Total 14891 100 154965980 100

(x)	 Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: As on 31st March 2016 about 89.84% of the Company’s equity 
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paid-up capital had been dematerialized. Trading in equity shares of the Company at the Stock Exchange is 
permitted compulsorily in demat mode.

(xi)	 There are no outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible other Instruments as on the date.

(xii)	 Plant Locations: The Company has Vanaspati Plant and refinery located at: 
SP 916, RIICO Industrial Area

Phase III, Bhiwadi 301 019
Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan.

(xiii)	Address for Correspondence: The shareholders may send their communication grievances/ queries to the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents at their Address mentioned above or to the Company at:

Investor Relation Centre
Ajanta Soya Ltd

12th Floor, Bigjo’s Tower, A-8, Netaji Subhash Place
Wazirpur Distt.Center, Delhi 110034

Phone: 011- 42515151
Fax: 011- 42515100

e-mail: cs@ajantasoya.com
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7.	 DISCLOSURES

a)	 Related Party Transactions 

	 There are no materially significant related party transactions with its Promoters, the Directors or the Management, 
their Subsidiaries or Relatives etc., which may have potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. 
The other related party transactions are given in Point no. 36 of Notes on Accounts annexed to and forming 
the part of Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account of the Company.

	 The policy has been disclosed on the website of the Company at www.ajantasoya.com. Web link for the same 
is http://ajantasoya.com/wp-content/forms/POLICY%20ON%20RELATED%20PARTY%20TRANSACTIONS.
pdf.

b)	 Non-compliance by the Company, Penalties, Structures	

	 There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, structures imposed on the Company 
by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the 
last three years.

c)	 Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy and affirmation that no personnel 
has been denied access to the Audit Committee:

	 The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism as 
defined under Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations for directors and employees to report concerns about 
unethical behaviour. Further no person has been denied access to the Chairman of the audit committee. The 
said policy has been also put up on the website of the Company.

d)	 Compliance with Mandatory Requirements and adoption of the non mandatory requirements:

	 The Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

e)	 Commodity Price Risk / Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities

	 Your Company has a robust framework and governance mechanism in place to ensure that the organization 
is adequately protected from the market volatility in terms of price and availability based on procurement 
team’s monitoring and intelligence, forecasts of commodity prices and movements. A robust planning and 
strategy ensure the Company’s interests are protected despite volatility in commodity prices. Your Company 
has managed the foreign exchange risk with appropriate hedging activities in accordance with the policies of 
the Company. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge against its foreign currency exposures 
relating to the underlying transactions and firm commitment. The Company does not enter into any derivate 
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

f)	 Disclosure of the extent to which the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II 

have been adopted.

i.	 Maintenance of the Chairman’s Office

	 The Company has not appointed any Chairman of the Company. The present board appoint Chairman 
for conducting board meeting and general meeting.

ii.	 Shareholders Rights

	 The quarterly and annual financial results of the Company are published in newspapers on an all India 
basis and are also posted on the Company’s website, www.ajantasoya.com. Significant events if any are 
also posted on this website under the ‘Investor relations’ section. The complete Annual Report is sent to 
every Shareholder of the Company. 

iii.	 Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report

	 The Auditors have raised no qualifications on the financial statements of the Company.

iv.	 Separate posts of Chairman and CEO

	 The Company had not appointed any Chairman and CEO of the Company. Mr Sushil Goyal is Managing 
Director of the Company.
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v.	 Reporting of Internal Auditors

	 The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee based on the inputs provided by the 
Management on their observations if any on a quarterly basis.

g)	 Disclosure of compliance of regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of regulation 46

	 The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses 
(b) to (i) of sub–regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

8.	 CODE OF CONDUCT

	 The Board has formulated a code of conduct for the Board members and senior management of the Company. 
The same has also been posted on the website of the Company.  All Board members and senior management 
personnel have affirmed their compliance with the code. 

	 Declaration on compliance with code of conduct by the Managing Director:

	 The Board has formulated a code of conduct for the Board members and senior management of the Company, 
which has been posted on the website of the Company – www.ajantasoya.com.

	 It is hereby affirmed that all the Directors and senior management personnel have complied with the code of 
conduct framed by the Company and a confirmation to that effect has been obtained from the directors and senior 
management.

Sd/-
Sushil Goyal

Managing Director
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CEO/CFO Certification

We, Sushil Goyal, Managing Director and Jai Gopal Sharma, Chief Financial Officer, responsible for the finance function 
certify that:

(a)	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2016 and that 
to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) 	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading;

(ii) 	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) 	 To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.

(c) 	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that they have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and they have 
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, 
if any, of which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) 	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

(i) 	 significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) 	 significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements; and

(iii) 	 instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting.

Date :13th August, 2016	 Jai Gopal Sharma	 Sushil Goyal
Place: New Delhi	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director

	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AJANTA SOYA LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Ajanta Soya Limited for the year ended 
31st March 2016, as stipulated in chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclo-
sure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has com-
plied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the provisions as specified in chapter IV Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to Listing 
Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor as to the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For TAS ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 10520 N

Place: New Delhi 	 						      (SUBODH GUPTA)
Dated: 13th August, 2016						      Partner

M. No. : 087099
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Ajanta Soya Limited for the year ended March 31, 2016

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ajanta Soya Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be 
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section143(10)of the Act. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give the 
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016, its Profit and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure- A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a)	 we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b)	 in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our 
examination of those books;

(c)	 the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account;

(d)	 in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

(e)	 on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2016, and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms 
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of sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Act;

(f)	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure B; and 

(g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, we further comment that:

i)	 the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements as 
referred in note 27-I (c)(ii); 

ii.	 the Company did not have any long term contracts and derivative contracts outstanding as at 31 March, 2016; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

	 For TAS ASSOCIATES 
	 Chartered Accountants 
	 [Firm Registration No. 010520N]	

	 Sd/-
	 Subodh Gupta 	
Place	 :	 Delhi	 Partner	
Date	 :	 May 30, 2016	 Membership number: 087099 

ANNEXURE- A : TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Members of Ajanta Soya Limited 

for the year ended March 31, 2016

In terms of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 
sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we report, on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable, as hereunder:

i)	 a)	 In our opinion, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

	 b)	 During the year, these fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its fixed assets. As mentioned to us the 
discrepancies noticed by the management on such verification were not material in relation to the size of the company 
have been properly dealt with in accounts.

	 c)	 According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the company, 
the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

ii)	 a)	 During the year, the inventories have been physically verified by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of verification 
is reasonable.

	 b)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedures of physical verification of 
inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature 
of its business. 

	 c)	 The discrepancies between physical inventories and the book records, as observed on verification, were not material in 
relation to the size of the company, have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts

iii)	 a)	 The company has not granted any loan secured or unsecured to parties covered in the register maintained under section 
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). 

iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of 
section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments guarantees made. 

v) 	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from public.

vi)	 Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. 

vii)	 a)	 According to our examination of records and on the basis of information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account of the company in 
respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service-
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were in arrears at 
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the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

	 b) 	 According to our examination of records and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, there are no dues 
in respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs or excise, value added tax that have not been deposited 
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except the followings:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Due Amount Involved  
(Rs in Lacs)

Period to 
which the due 

relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Sales/Entry Tax Act Rajasthan entry Tax 16.59 (8.30 deposit-
ed under protest)

2007-08 to 
2009-10

High Court, Jaipur

Central Excise Act Additional duty on 
re-assessment 

69.56 (12 lacs depos-
ited under protest)

April 2011 to 
Dec,2011

CESTAT

viii)	 According to our examination of records and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of dues to any bank or financial institution, government or debenture holder during the year. 

ix) 	 The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term 
loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

x)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the company or on the company by its officers 
or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

xi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company , the 
company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

xii)	 In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us , the company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) 	  According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, transactions 
with related parties are in accordance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv) 	 According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the company 
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 

xv) 	 According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the company 
has not entered in to any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 

xvi) 	 The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank Of India Act 1934. 
 	

	 For TAS ASSOCIATES 
	 Chartered Accountants 
	 [Firm Registration No. 010520N]	

	 Sd/-
	 Subodh Gupta 	
Place	 :	 Delhi	 Partner	
Date	 :	 May 30, 2016	 Membership number: 087099 

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Members of Ajanta Soya Limited 

for the year ended March 31, 2016

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ajanta Soya Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016, 
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (‘ICAI’).These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, 
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the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

	 For TAS ASSOCIATES 
	 Chartered Accountants 
	 [Firm Registration No. 010520N]	

	 Sd/-
	 Subodh Gupta 	
Place	 :	 Delhi	 Partner	
Date	 :	 May 30, 2016	 Membership number: 087099 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2016
Particulars Note No.  As at 

 31.03.2016 
 (`) 

 As at 
 31.03.2015 

 (`) 

(I) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ Funds
     (a) Share capital 2 154,965,980 154,965,980 
     (b) Reserves and surplus 3 162,851,726 111,953,679 
(2) Non current liabilities
     (a) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 4 5,551,742 5,797,599 
     (b) Other long term liabilities 5 261,617 655,907 
     (c) Long term provisions 6 7,919,657 6,760,634 
(3) Current liabilities
     (a) Short term borrowings 7 162,816,088 163,206,659 
     (b) Trade payables 8 525,901,384 458,101,886 
     (c) Other current liabilities 9 31,165,528 12,101,171 
     (d) Short term provisions 10 20,378,180 8,734,087 

TOTAL 1,071,811,902 922,277,602 
(II) ASSETS 
(1) Non current assets
     (a) Fixed assets 11 
          (i)   Tangible assets 95,687,267 103,222,567 
          (ii)   Intangible assets 13,760 -   
          (iii)  Capital work in progress -   1,109,562 

  (b) Non current investments 12 32,872,500 19,762,500 
  (c) Long term loans and advances 13 25,979,728 21,560,575 

(2) Current assets
     (a) Current Investments 14 186,268,473 126,268,473 
     (b) Inventories 15 433,304,956 314,815,315 
     (c) Trade receivables 16 168,039,022 228,062,352 
     (d) Cash and cash equivalents 17 116,387,990 86,258,407 
     (e) Short term loans and advances 18 13,183,715 21,055,701 
     (f) Other current assets 19 74,491 162,150 

TOTAL 1,071,811,902 922,277,602 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
AND NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1 to 40 (1)
Note: The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date

For TAS Associates	 For and on the Behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 010520N

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-	  Sd/-
	 Subodh Gupta	 Sushil Goyal	  Abhey Goyal 
	 (Partner)	 (Managing Director)	 (Whole Time Director)
	 M.No.: 087099	 (DIN : 00125275)	 (DIN : 02321262)

		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Jai Gopal Sharma	 Kapil
Dated : May 30, 2016	 (Chief Financial Officer)	 (Company Secretary)
		  (PAN : ANYPS9660D)	 (M.No. : 29508)
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016
 
 

Note
No.

  2015-16
(`)

 
 

2014-15
(`)

INCOME:

1.  Revenue from Operations 20 5,791,182,258 5,526,642,068 

2.  Other Income 21 33,745,186 19,051,427 

 T O T A L  R E V E N U E 5,824,927,444 5,545,693,495 

EXPENSES:

1.  Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 22 5,359,889,715 5,188,894,982 

2.  Purchase of Stock in Trade (Raw Oil) 63,945,955 57,268,152 

3.  Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods

and Stock in Process 23 31,599,877 (6,866,458)

4.  Employee benefits 24 30,908,051 26,781,639 

5.  Finance Costs 25 12,595,513 14,663,341 

6.  Depreciation & amortization expense 11 12,406,999 15,663,439 

7.  Others 26 242,791,609 226,814,551 

 T O T A L  E X P E N S E S 5,754,137,719 5,523,219,646 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 70,789,725 22,473,849 

LESS: PROVISION FOR TAXATION

   - Current Tax 20,313,628 9,210,151 

   - Deferred Tax Charge/(Reversal) 4 (245,857) (12,216,539)

   - Wealth Tax 0 18,351 

   - (Excess)/short for earlier years (Net) (176,093) 19,891,678 -  (2,988,037)

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 50,898,047 25,461,886 

BASIC & DILUTED EARNING PER SHARE 35 3.28 1.64 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

AND NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1 to 40

Note: The notes referred to above form an 
integral part of these Financial statements
As per our report of even date 

For TAS Associates	 For and on the Behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 010520N

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-	  Sd/-
	 Subodh Gupta	 Sushil Goyal	  Abhey Goyal 
	 (Partner)	 (Managing Director)	 (Whole Time Director)
	 M.No.: 087099	 (DIN : 00125275)	 (DIN : 02321262)

		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Jai Gopal Sharma	 Kapil
Dated : May 30, 2016	 (Chief Financial Officer)	 (Company Secretary)
		  (PAN : ANYPS9660D)	 (M.No. : 29508)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
 
 

Particulars
 

Note
No.

2015-16
(In `)

2014-15
(In `)

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before Tax & Extraordinary items  70,789,725  22,473,849 

Add: Non cash and Non operating items

Depreciation and amortization expenses  12,406,999  15,663,439 

Finance Costs  12,595,513  14,663,341 

Provision for doubtful debts  -  396,273 

Net Gain/loss on Foreign currency change  16,109,047  - 

Provision for Employee Benefits  1,815,347  1,671,378 

Loss on Discardment of Fixed Asset  -  42,926,906  277,202  32,671,633 

Less: Non Operating items

Net Gain on sale of Investments  3,446,317  3,575,897 

Rent received  950,677  1,577,160 

Net Gain/loss on Foreign currency change  -  4,687,676 

Profit on sale of fixed assets  49,447  - 

Gain on transfer of Keyman Policy  15,923,672 -

Interest from bank and others  8,949,279  8,596,969 

   29,319,392    18,437,702 

Operating Profit before Working Capital 
changes

 84,397,239  36,707,780 

Adjustments for:

Inventories  (118,489,641)  2,632,244 

Trade & Other Receivables  62,273,299  (33,005,062)

Trade Payable and Other Liabilities  86,469,565  30,253,223  (147,511,673) (177,884,491)

Cash Generated from operations before  
extraordinary item and tax

114,650,461 (141,176,711)

Less: Taxes Paid 6,959,055  5,485,659 

Less: Leave Encashment and Gratuity Paid  900,187  7,859,242  351,589  5,837,248 

Cash Flow before Extraordinary items 106,791,219 (147,013,959)

Extraordinary Items  -  - 

Net Cash from Operating Activities……...……….(A) 106,791,219 (147,013,959)

B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments towards fixed assets  (5,086,016)  (11,698,236)

Payment towards capital work in progress  1,109,562  (1,109,562)

Interest received from bank & others  8,949,279  8,596,969 

Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets  250,000  - 

Payments towards Investments  (73,110,000)  (126,268,473)

Sale Proceeds of Investments  3,446,317  88,000,000 

Change in Investments made in FDR (Pledged)  6,345,153  33,291,375 

Rent received  950,677  1,577,160 

Net Cash used in Investing Activities………...…..(B)  (57,145,028)  (7,610,767)



AJANTA SOYA LIMITED

49

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Movement in Short Term Borrowings  (390,571)  141,808,803 

Movement in Long Term Borrowings  - 

Gain on transfer of Keyman Policy  15,923,672  - 

Net Gain/loss on Foreign currency change  (16,109,047)  4,687,676 

Finance Costs  (12,595,513)  (14,663,341)

Net Cash received in financing Activities........  (C) (13,171,459)  131,833,138 

D) NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)  36,474,733  (22,791,589)

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at beginning of year (excluding pledged FDR’s)  10,532,925  33,324,513 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at end of year (excluding pledged FDR’s)  47,007,659  10,532,925 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 1 22,791,588.47 

AND NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1 to 40  36,474,731.85 - 0.14 

Note: The notes referred to above form an integral part of these Financial statements 

(I) 	 Figures in brackets represent deductions and outflows

(II)	 Cash & Cash Equivalents do not include Fixed Deposits pledged with Bank and accrued interest thereon as the same are not 
highly liquid and readily convertible into cash.

(III) 	 The previous year’s figures have been restated, wherever considered necessary.

As per our report of even date 	 For and on the Behalf of Board of Directors
or TAS Associates	
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 010520N

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-	  Sd/-
	 Subodh Gupta	 Sushil Goyal	  Abhey Goyal 
	 (Partner)	 (Managing Director)	 (Whole Time Director)
	 M.No.: 087099	 (DIN : 00125275)	 (DIN : 02321262)

		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Jai Gopal Sharma	 Kapil
Dated : May 30, 2016	 (Chief Financial Officer)	 (Company Secretary)
		  (PAN : ANYPS9660D)	 (M.No. : 29508)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES	

i)	 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India and the historical 
cost convention, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value. These financial statements have 
been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 vide Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2014.					   

ii)	 USE OF ESTIMATES			   					   

	 The preparation of financial statement requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of 
Revenue, Expenses, Assets and Liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. Difference 
between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized.   

iii)	 RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE:

i)	 Revenues/Incomes and Costs/Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred in 
accordance with the generally accepted Accounting principles and Accounting Standards as applicable in India.

ii)	 In case of sales & purchase, accrual is deemed to have taken place on actual delivery of goods.

iii)	 In case of interest, income is recognized in relation to period to which it pertains.	

iv)	 In case of uncertainties as to the risks & rewards, the conservative accounting policy is adopted by way of making 
suitable provisions for expenses and deferring the recognition of revenues.

iv)	 EXCISE DUTY:	

	 Excise Duty has been accounted on the basis of both payments made in respect of goods cleared and also provision 
made for goods lying in factory premises. Cenvat credit is accounted on accrual basis on purchase of materials.	

v)	 EMPLOYEES BENEFITS:	

i)	 Retirement benefits in the form of Provident fund and Family Pension fund is a defined contribution scheme and 
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss account of the year when the contributions to the 
respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.

ii)	 Gratuity is a defined benefit obligation. Gratuity liability is accrued and provided for on the basis of an actuarial 
valuation on the projected unit credit method made at the end of the financial year.

iii)	 Long term compensated balances in the form of leave encashment are provided for based on actuarial valuation at 
the end of the financial year. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.

iv)	 Actuarial gains/losses are debited to profit and loss account and are not deferred. 

vi)	 FIXED ASSETS
i)	 Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation/ amortisation, other than Leasehold Land’, where no 

amortization is made. The properties/assets, in respect of which beneficial transfer has been affected, even though 
pending execution/registration, are capitalised.

ii)	 In case of Fixed Assets acquired out of capital grants/subsidy, the cost is reduced to the extent of capital grant/subsidy.
iii)	 The Capital work in progress is capitalized as fixed assets on the date of commissioning of the asset.
iv)	 Intangible assets are measured at cost and amortized over a period for which the assets’ economic benefits are 

expected to accrue.								      
v)	 All expenditure, directly related to the fixed asset including interest on borrowings for the project, incurred up to the 

date of installation, are directly capitalised and added, if required, pro-rata to the cost of factory buildings, wherever 
applicable, and plant and machinery relating thereto.

vii)	 METHOD OF DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
i)	 Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight-line method over the useful lives of assets as specified in 

Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the management adoption of the revised useful life as 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 is appropriate representative of the depreciation charge and 
the time pattern in which economic benefits will be derived from use of assets.]

ii)	 Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/discard of assets is calculated pro-rata from the date of such addition 
or up to the date of such sale/ discardment.

iii)	 No amounts are written off against Leasehold Land by way of amortization.
iv)	 Intangible asset being software is amortized over a period of five years.
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viii)	 VALUATION OF INVENTORIES	 							     

		  Particulars /  Item Type	 Method of Valuation

		  1.	 Raw Material, Packing Material & 	 At Cost including direct procurement Overhead / Taxes.
			   Consumables (including in transit)
		  2.	 Finished Goods (including in transit)	 At cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower
		  3.	 Stock in process	 At cost
		  4.	 By Products 	 At net realisable value
		  5.	 Loose Tools	 At cost and charged off when discarded
		  6.	 Shares / Securities (Quoted)	 At lower of cost or net realizable value

	 In the above, cost is arrived at by FIFO cost method. In case of Finished Goods and Stock in Process, it also includes 
manufacturing & related establishment overheads, depreciation etc.

	 All the spares, which are primarily meant to be used for capitalization (except consumables and maintenance stores), are 
considered as part of the plant & machinery and shown accordingly.

ix)	 INVESTMENTS

	 Long-term investments are stated at cost price.  Any diminution of permanent nature in the value of the long-term investments 
is suitably provided for by charging off to revenue.  Current (Short-term and stock in trade) investments are stated at lower 
of cost or net realisable value.

	 In case of unquoted shares, the diminution in value of shares is arrived on the basis of break up value as per latest available 
audited balance sheet of the respective company.

x)	 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
i)	 Foreign Currency transactions during the year are recorded at rates of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.  

Current Assets and Current Liabilities are translated at using the year-end exchange rate.  Exchange gains and losses 
are duly recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. 

ii) 	 In case of forward contracts, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate on the date of the 
transaction is recognised as income or expense over the life of the contract.

xi)	 TAXATION
i)	 Provision for current Income Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income after taking into consideration, 

estimates of benefits admissible under the provisions of Income Tax, 1961. The company provides for deferred tax 
liability (after netting off deferred tax assets), based on the tax effect of timing difference resulting from the recognition 
of items in the financial statements. 

ii)	 Deferred tax assets (after, netting of deferred tax liabilities), are generally not recognized unless there exist strong 
circumstances for its adjustment/realization in near future. 

iii)	 Provision for Wealth Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable wealth after taking into consideration, estimates 
of benefits admissible under the provisions of Wealth Tax Act, 1957.

iv)	 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence 
that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit becomes 
eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of 
profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The company reviews the same at each balance sheet date 
and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence 
to the effect that company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period. 

xii)	 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

	 Consideration is given by the management of the company at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment of the carrying amount of assets. If any indication exists, impairment loss is recognised whenever 
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the net selling 
price and value in use. Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is indication that 
the impairment losses for the assets are no longer exist. 

xiii)	 FINANCE LEASE

	 Assets taken on lease are capitalized at fair value or net present value of the minimum lease payments, whichever is lower.

	 Depreciation on assets taken on lease is charged at the rate applicable to similar type of fixed assets as per accounting 
policy of the company for depreciation as above. If the leased assets are returnable to lessor on the expiry of the period, 
depreciation is charged over its useful life or lease period whichever is shorter. 
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	 Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability in respect of 
assets taken on lease. Sub-lease payments received/ recoverable are recognized as other income.

xiv)	 OPERATING LEASES

	 Where the Company is the Lessee:

	 Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are 
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

	 Where the Company is the Lessor:

	 Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs including depreciation are recognized as an expense in the 
statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in 
the statement of profit and loss.

xv)	 EARNINGS PER SHARE :

	 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the events of bonus issue and share split. 

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

xvi)	 PROVISIONS 

	 A Provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions 
are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on management estimate required to settle the obligation 
at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management 
estimates.

xvii)	CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

	 A disclosure is made for a contingent liability when there is a:

a)	 possible obligation, the existence of which will be confirmed by the occurrence/non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain events, not fully within the control of the Company;

b)	 present obligation, where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation;

c)	 present obligation, where a reliable estimate cannot be made.  

xviii)	SEGMENT REPORTING
	 Identification of segments
	 The company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and 

services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves 
different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the 
company operate.

	 Inter-segment Transfers
	 The Company generally accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties at 

current market prices.
	 Allocation of common costs
	 Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to the total 

common costs.
	 Unallocated items
	 Other segment includes income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment.

xix)	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

	 Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Non-cash transactions are excluded from the Cash Flow 
statement.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
    As at 

 31.03.2016 
 (`) 

 As at 
 31.03.2015 

 (`) 
2 SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

15,500,000 (P.Y 15,500,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 155,000,000  155,000,000 

 155,000,000  155,000,000 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID UP

15,496,598 (P.Y 15,496,598) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each, fully paid up 154,965,980  154,965,980 

 154,965,980  154,965,980 

i)     Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares:

Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  15,496,598  15,496,598 

Change in number of Equity Shares  -  - 

Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year  15,496,598  15,496,598 

ii) Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity shares of the company:

Name of Equity Shareholder Number of 
Equity Shares

Percentage of 
shareholding

Number of 
Equity Shares

Percentage of 
shareholding

Cosmic Alloys and Metal Works Pvt. Ltd  1,800,000  11.62  1,800,000  11.62 
Harshit Finvest Pvt. Ltd.  1,800,000  11.62  1,800,000  11.62 
iii)   Terms of Rights, preferences and restriction attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share and has a right to receive dividend as recommended by the board of directors subject to 
the necessary approval from the shareholders.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the paid up amount per 
equity shares held by the shareholders.

3	 RESERVES & SURPLUS

Capital reserve
 -      As per last Balance Sheet 4,720,000 4,720,000 
Statutory reserve fund
 -       As per last Balance Sheet 1,133,228 1,133,228 
General reserve
 -       As per last Balance Sheet 19,934,873 19,934,873 
Securities premium reserve

 As per last Balance Sheet 14,400,000 14,400,000 
Surplus, in statement of profit & loss

As per last Balance Sheet 71,765,578 81,953,928 
Less: Adjustment for depreciation due to change in 
estimated useful life of assets (refer note no.11) -   35,650,236 

71,765,578 46,303,692 
Add: Profit for the year 50,898,047 25,461,886 

122,663,625 71,765,578 
162,851,726 111,953,679 
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    As at 

 31.03.2016 
 (`) 

 As at 
 31.03.2015 

 (`) 

4	 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET):

Major components of Deferred Tax Liabilities (net of deferred tax as-
sets) arising on account of timing differences are as under: 
Deferred Tax Liabilities
 - in respect of fixed assets (a)  9,266,035  9,112,895 

 9,266,035  9,112,895 
Deferred Tax Assets
 - Disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961  3,714,293  3,315,296 

(b)  3,714,293  3,315,296 
Accumulated Deferred Tax Liability (net) (a - b)  5,551,742  5,797,599 
Deferred tax Charge/(Reversal) recognized for the year  (245,857) (12,216,539)
Note: Deferred tax Asset not recognized due to uncertainty of
realization in near future:
 - in respect of carry forward of long term capital losses  866,807  866,807 

5	 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Security Deposits from Dealers  261,617  655,907 

261,617 655,907 

6	 LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Employees Benefits:
i) Gratuity  6,575,325  5,528,947 
ii) Leave Encashment  1,344,332  1,231,687 

7,919,657 6,760,634 

7	 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

A) Secured Loans

From Banks

Rupee Loans

 - Working capital loans  162,816,088  163,206,659 

Working capital loans from banks are secured by way of:

i) First pari-passu charge including hypothecation of company’s entire 
current assets both present and future along with Standard chartered 
bank in consortium.
ii) Further secured by way of personal guarantee of Managing Director, 
four other Directors & two relatives of directors of the company along with 
a corporate guarantee of another company under the same management
iii) Collaterally secured by way of first pari-passu charge with Standard 
chartered bank under consortium :- 
a) On entire fixed assets of the company, including factory land & build-
ing but excluding leasehold two commercial flates at Wazirpur, Delhi.
b) On a residential house belonging to a director and and a commercial 
property belonging to relatives of directors/group company.
iv) The working capital limits are valid for 12 months and are renewable 
on year to year basis

162,816,088 163,206,659 
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    As at 

 31.03.2016 
 (`) 

 As at 
 31.03.2015 

 (`) 

8	 TRADE PAYABLES

Acceptances 406,792,847  430,728,037 
Others 
- Due to Micro & Small enterprises (inc. interest)  -  - 
-   Due to Other than Micro & Small enterprises 119,108,537  119,108,537 27,373,849  27,373,849 

 525,901,384 458,101,886 

Note: Company had sent communications to its creditors for identification of micro, small and medium enterprises. On 
the basis of response, to the extent received, to such communication and identification, the disclosures in respect to 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 is as follows:
Particulars       

i) The Principal amount due and remaining unpaid to any supplier  -- --
ii) Interest due on above and the unpaid interest  --  -- 
iii) The amount of Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16               

of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
 -- --

iv) Payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 
the year.

-- --

v) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year but without adding the interest specified under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.)

-- --

vi) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. -- --
vii) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid to small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance 
as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of this Act.

-- --

9 	 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest accrued and due on short term borrowings other than banks  -  219,938 
Advance from Customers  8,232,907  3,992,566 
Accrued salary & benefits

 - Salary & benefits 942,058 744,395 
 - Bonus & incentives  1,431,006  2,373,064 446,090  1,190,485 

Other Payables:
 - Statutory liabilities  10,559,012  4,786,476 
 - Expenses payable  10,000,545  20,559,557  1,911,706  6,698,182 

31,165,528  12,101,171 
Note:
No amount is due for credit to Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

10	 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Taxation (Net of Advance Tax/TDS) 19,359,900  8,234,177 
Less: MAT credit utilised  - 19,359,900  780,584 7,453,593 
Provision for Wealth tax  - 18,351 
Provision for Employee Benefits:

 - Gratuity  888,253  1,100,936 
 - Leave Encashment  130,027  1,018,280  161,207 1,262,143 

20,378,180  8,734,087 
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    As at 

 31.03.2016 
 (`) 

 As at 
 31.03.2015 

 (`) 

12	 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Unquoted-at Cost) 

Investments in Equity Instruments

 - DG Estates Pvt. Ltd. 14,725,000 14,725,000 

294500 (P.Y. 294500) Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up

 - Dhruv Globals Limited 3,680,500  3,680,500 

368050 (P.Y. 368050) Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 

 - Ajanta Realtech Pvt Ltd 13,110,000  - 

95000 (P.Y. Nil) Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 

Investments in Mutual Funds 

 - LIC of India - Profit Plus Growth Fund 1,357,000  1,357,000 

140834.140 (P.Y 140948.38.038 units ) (NAV as on 31/03/2016 ` 14.40 each

P.Y- ` 14.78 each)

 32,872,500  19,762,500 

Notes :

1. Aggregate Cost of Unquoted Investments  32,872,500  19,762,500 

13	 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(unsecured & considered good)

Security and other deposits  19,889,766  19,903,024 

Loans & Advances to Employees  126,030  248,572 

Advance for purchase of immovable Property  5,000,000  - 

Other Advances  963,932  1,408,979 

 25,979,728  21,560,575 

14	 CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Unquoted-at Cost)

Investments in Mutual funds 

SBI Mag Insta Cash Fund Liquid Floater- Regular Plan 36,268,473  36,268,473 

15330.32(P.Y.15330.32 Units), NAV 31.03.2016 ` 2567.41 (P.Y. ` 2365.80) each 

SBI Premium Liquid Fund - Regular Plan  150,000,000  90,000,000 

63250.46 (P.Y. 41009.12 Units), NAV 31.03.2016 ` 2376.08(P.Y. ` 2194.64) each 

 186,268,473  126,268,473 

Notes :

Of the above, Lien marked against bank facilities  36,268,473  36,268,473 

Aggregate Cost of Unquoted Investments  186,268,473  126,268,473 

Aggregate Market/Fair value based on NAV  189,647,415  126,313,093 
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    As at 

 31.03.2016 
 (`) 

 As at 
 31.03.2015 

 (`) 
15	 INVENTORIES

Raw Material (Oil):
 - At Godown  49,150,361  35,178,053 
 - In Transit  287,320,739  336,471,100 148,427,953 183,606,006 
Stock in Process  40,603,710  61,641,612 
Finished Goods  37,735,048  48,297,023 
Packing Material  10,816,610  10,215,023 
Chemical and Fuel  1,447,787  4,499,084 
Stores & Spares  6,202,746  6,528,612 
Others:
 - Shares and Securities  27,955  27,955 
(Note: Inventories are carried at cost, or lower of cost and net realizable value)

 433,304,956 314,815,315 

16	 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Unsecured & considered good)

Over six months from the date they were due for payment  352,256  453,614 
 Less : Provision for doubtful receivables 175,580  175,580 

176,676 278,034 
Others  167,862,346  168,039,022 227,784,318 228,062,352 

 168,039,022 228,062,352 

17	 CASH & BANK BALANCES

a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with banks:

           - In Current Accounts  46,328,948  9,356,864 
           - In Fixed Deposits  -  - 
(Maturing within 3 months)

 Cash in Hand  678,710 47,007,658  1,176,061  10,532,925 
b) Other Balances with Banks
           - In Fixed Deposits  69,380,332  75,725,482 
(Maturing after 3 months and pledged with Banks as
margin money against bank guarantees, FLC’s.)

 116,387,990  86,258,407 

18	 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(unsecured & considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loans & Advances to Others 
 Advance to Suppliers
 Considered Good 6,333,987  10,311,780 
 Considered Doubtful 546,273  546,273 
 Less: Provision for doubtful 546,273  -  546,273  - 
Loans & Advances to Employees  385,480  264,745 
Balance with Central Excise & Service Tax Authorities  1,406,179  1,312,135 
(Refer Note 27(1)(c) (ii)
Sales tax /Vat Recoverable  118,028  1,743,874 
Other amounts recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to 
be received 
 Considered Good  4,940,041  7,423,167 
 Considered Doubtful  568,670  568,670 
 Less: Provision for doubtful  568,670  -  568,670  - 

 13,183,715  21,055,701 
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    As at 

 31.03.2016 
 (`) 

 As at 
 31.03.2015 

 (`) 
19	 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(unsecured & considered good)
Interest accrued but not due on loan and bank 
deposits

 74,491  162,150 

 74,491  162,150 

 
   Year ended 

 31.03.2016 
 (`) 

Year ended 
 31.03.2015 

 (`) 

20	 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products:
Vanaspati & Refined Oil  5,599,463,561 5,340,320,654 
By Products  214,744,782 208,555,660 

 5,814,208,343 5,548,876,314 
Less: Excise Duty on By Products  23,026,085  5,791,182,258  22,234,246 5,526,642,068 

 5,791,182,258 5,526,642,068 

21	 OTHER INCOME

Rent Received 950,677  1,577,160 

Net Gain on sale of Current Investments  3,446,317  3,575,897 

Net Gain on sale of Fixed Assets  49,447  - 

Net Gain on foreign currency transactions & translation  -  4,687,676 

Interest on:

 - Bank deposits  8,299,590  7,593,503 

 - On debts & securities  649,690  1,003,466 

Unspent liabilities written back 49,589  175,724 

Gain on transfer of Keyman Policy 15,923,672  - 

Gain on settlement/cancellation of bargains 4,333,685  - 

Miscellaneous Income  42,519  438,001 

 33,745,186  19,051,427 

22	 COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED

Raw Materials (Oil)

1.      Raw Oil 

Opening Stock 183,606,006  193,547,552 

Purchases 4,578,069,580 4,582,702,802 

Freight, Brokerage, & Insurance etc.  757,075,003 405,434,872 

 5,518,750,589 5,181,685,226 

Less: Closing Stock (including ln-Transit)  336,471,100  5,182,279,489 183,606,006  4,998,079,220 

2.     Packing Material 149,435,463  163,436,222 

3.     Chemicals 28,174,763  27,379,540 

 5,359,889,715  5,188,894,982 
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   Year ended 

 31.03.2016 
 (`) 

Year ended 
 31.03.2015 

 (`) 
23	 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED

GOODS AND STOCK IN PROCESS
Opening Inventories
 - Shares/ Securities 27,955  27,955 

 - Finished Goods 48,297,023  53,580,671 
 - Stock in Process 61,641,612  109,966,590  49,491,506  103,100,132 

Closing Inventories
 - Shares/ Securities 27,955  27,955 

 - Finished Goods 37,735,048  48,297,023 
 - Stock in Process 40,603,710  78,366,713  61,641,612  109,966,590 

(Increase)/Decrease in stocks  31,599,877  (6,866,458)

24	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Salaries, Wages and Incentives  25,599,391  21,865,922 
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds  2,291,653  2,103,741 
Provision for Long term employees benefits (Refer note no. 29)  1,815,347  1,671,378 
Staff Welfare  1,201,660  1,140,598 

30,908,051  26,781,639 

25	 FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
 - Working Capital Loan from banks  4,229,815  11,190,272 
 - Others  670,782  4,900,597  258,853  11,449,125 

Bank Charges  7,694,916  3,214,216 
 12,595,513  14,663,341 

26	 OTHERS
Consumption of Stores & Spares  11,318,115  10,816,440 
Fuel, Power & Electricity  109,020,106  109,204,591 
Handling Charges 6,396,309  9,608,207 
Laboratory Expenses  107,747  85,366 
Repair & Maintenance - Plant & Machinery  2,913,059  2,960,493 
Repair & Maintenance - Building 1,422,157  1,065,100 
Rates & Taxes  1,702,932  1,244,349 
Rent (Refer note no. 38)  1,226,090  1,834,170 
Conveyance & Vehicle Maintenance  1,182,544  1,397,274 
Telephone, Postage & Internet Expenses  1,154,526  1,078,180 
Legal, Professional Expenses  3,194,616  3,203,815 
Printing & Stationery  656,038  556,628 
Insurance  4,276,037  3,657,272 
Tours & Travelling  2,308,034  2,149,473 
Charity & Donation 26,200  36,000 
Business Promotion  2,880,409  970,770 
Advertisement and Publicity  243,703  236,046 
Freight Outward  63,146,225  56,438,507 
Commission, Discounts & Selling Expenses  16,239,026  17,671,751 
Membership & Subscription  147,447  104,590 
Bad debts / Claims receivable written off  10,402  - 
Provision for Doubtful debts  -  396,273 
Net Loss on foreign currency transactions & translation  11,421,371  - 
Loss on sale/discardment of fixed asset  -  277,202 
Miscellaneous Expenses  1,798,516  1,822,054 

 242,791,609  226,814,551 
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27	 Contingent Liabilities and commitments:

I. 	 Contingent Liabilities:

2015-16 2014-15
a)  Claims against the company not acknowledged as Debts.  Nil  Nil 
b)  Guarantees :    

In favour of Punjab State Co-op. Supply & Marketing Federa-
tion Ltd.(MARKFED) 

 1,500,000  1,500,000 

In favour of Assistant Commissioner,Commercial Tax Depart-
ment.

 829,530  829,530 

In favour of Registrar,High Court of Punjab  700,000  700,000 
 [Above are secured by way of lien marked fixed deposits(in-
clusive of accrued Interest) (Refer note no.17 )

 864,591  698,028 

c)   Other Money for which the company is contingently liable :     
i)   Un-utilised foreign letter of credits for import of raw oil  589,151,235  154,418,175 

 [ Secured by way of lien marked Fixed deposits (inclusive 
of accrued Interest) covering both utilised and unutilised 
portions of letter of credits.] (Refer note no. 17 & 19)

 68,521,443  75,193,202 

 [ Secured by way of lien marked units of mutual funds 
covering both utilised and unutilised portions of letter of 
credits.] (Refer note no. 14) 

 36,268,473  36,268,473 

ii)  Excise Duty demand under appeal  6,956,253  6,956,253 
[Demand raised by Excise Department in F.Y. 2011-2012 
pending under appeal. The company had deposited a sum 
of Rs.11,99,650/- under protest which has been shown 
under the head short term loans and advances.]

   

iii)  Income Tax demand under appeal  -  769,397 
[Demand raised by Income Tax Department on Assess-
ments which are pending under appeals before Commis-
sioner (appeals). ]

   

iv)  Corporate Guarantee  698,000,000  702,300,000 
[Corporate guarantee in f/o banks, in lieu of such banks 
having extended various secured fund based & non-fund 
based credit facilities in favour of a related party.]

   

II. 	 Commitments:

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for 

-   -   

b) Uncalled Liability on shares and other Investment partly paid  -   -   

c) Other Commitments  -   -   

28	 In the opinion of the Board, value on realisation of assets other than fixed assets & non-current investments in the ordinary 
course of business would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. Balances of debtors 
and creditors, on the Balance Sheet date are subject to reconciliation and confirmation from some of the parties. However the 
variation is not expected to substantially vary the results of the company for the year.

29	  Disclosure for Employees Benefits: 

	 The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as employees long term benefits. The present value of obligation is determined 
based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional 
unit of employee benefit Entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for leave 
encashment is recognized in the same manner as gratuity. 
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i)	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows (`):

Particulars
 

Gratuity Leave Encashment

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

Opening defined benefit obligation 6,629,883 5,523,522 1,392,894 1,179,466

Interest cost 515,224 483,308 108,245 103,203

Current service cost 553,189 484,411 204,522 183,501

Actual return on plan assets N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Benefits paid (453,992) 0 (446,195) (351,589)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation 219,274 138,642 214,893 278,313 

Closing defined benefit obligation 7,463,578 6,629,883 1,474,359 1,392,894

ii) 	 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows (`):

Particulars  Gratuity Leave Encashment

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

Opening fair value of plan assets NIL NIL NIL NIL

Expected return N.A N.A N.A N.A

Contributions by employer NIL NIL NIL NIL

Benefits paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

Actuarial gain/(losses ) NIL NIL NIL NIL

Closing fair value of plan assets NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii)	 Net employee benefit expense debited to Statement of Profit & Loss (`):

Particulars
 

Gratuity Leave Encashment

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

Current service cost 553,189 484,411 204,522 183,501

Interest cost 515,224 483,308 108,245 103,203

Expected return on plan assets N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Actuarial (gain) / loss 219,274 138,642 214,893 278,313 

Net benefit expense 1,287,687 1,106,361 527,660 565,017

Actual return on plan assets N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

iv)	 Details of provision for Employees Benefits (`)

Particulars
 

Gratuity Leave Encashment
2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

Defined benefit obligation 7,463,578 6,629,883 1,474,359 1,392,894

Total value of provident fund contribution on 
closing liability

NIL NIL NIL NIL

Fair value of plan assets NIL NIL NIL NIL

Less: Unrecognized past service cost NIL NIL NIL NIL

Plan (Liability)/ Asset NIL NIL NIL NIL



AJANTA SOYA LIMITED

63

v)	 Actuarial Assumptions:

Particulars
 

Gratuity Leave Encashment
2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

Mortality table ( LIC) (2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08)

Discount rate 7.50% 7.75% 7.50% 7.75%

Expected rate of return on plan assets N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Rate of escalation in salary per annum 5.00% 5.25% 5.00% 5.25%

Employee turnover up to 30 years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Above 30 years but up to 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

Above 44 years   1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation take into account the inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors such as demand in the employment market and supply.

vi)	 Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan recognized as expense for the year is as under:

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Employer contribution to Provident & Family Pension Fund 2,291,653 2,103,741

30	 Payment to the auditors as:

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

 - Statutory Auditor    

a) Statutory Audit Fees 477,530 477,530

b) Tax Audit Fee 84,270 84,270

c) For Taxation Matters 281,372 196,630

d) Limited Review 68,400 67,416

e) Other matters - certification 13,680  12,360 

f) For Reimbursement of expenses 33,370 31,236

Total ( Including service Tax) 958,622 869,442

 - Cost Auditor (including expenses & service Tax) 58,320 63,860

 - Internal Auditor (including service Tax)  103,500 87,640

31	 Analysis of Material Consumed in Manufacturing Operation:

Class of goods Unit  Current Year Previous Year 
Qty. Value (Rs.) Qty. Value (Rs.)

Oil M.T  113,152.760  5,182,279,489  95,250.06 4,998,079,220
Packing -    149,435,463   163,436,222
Chemicals -    28,174,763   27,379,540
TOTAL     5,359,889,715   5,188,894,982
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32	 Value of imported and indigenous raw materials, spare parts and components consumed in manufacturing operation and the 
percentage of each to the total consumption.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Raw Material Spare Parts &
Components*

Raw Material Spare Parts &  
Components*

Value % to total Value % to total Value % to total Value % to total

Imported 4,871,342,720 90.89% -- --  4,661,490,022 89.84% -- --

Indigenous  488,546,995 9.11% -- --  527,404,960 10.16% -- --

  5,359,889,715 100.00% -- --  5,188,894,982 100.00% -- --

	 * Manufacturing process does not require any spare parts and components.

33	 The value ofTbasis by the company during the year in respect of:

Particulars  2015-16 2014-15

Raw Material  3,139,928,741  3,317,231,581 
Components and Spares  -   - 
Capital Goods   -   - 

34	 Earning & outgo in foreign Currency :

Particulars  2015-16 2014-15

Earning   3,895,625   - 
Outgo    

Purchase of raw oil  3,139,928,741  3,317,231,581 
Others  -   - 

35	 The Basic and Diluted Earning per Share has been arrived as follows:
(in Rupees)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Net Profit after tax available for equity shareholders  50,898,047  25,461,886 

No. of weighted average equity shares (Basic & Diluted)  15,496,598  15,496,598 

Basic Earning Per share (`)    3.28  1.64 

Diluted Earning Per share (`)  3.28  1.64 

36	 Related Party Disclosures	
	 The information given below is only in respect of the transactions entered into by the company during the year with the related 

parties.
A)	 Names of Related Parties and description of Relationship:

i)	 Enterprises in which Key managerial Personnel and their Relatives have significant influence 
	 Dhruv Globals Limited
	 G.D. Ferro Alloys Private Limited
	 GDF Exports Pvt.Ltd	
	 DG Estates Private Limited
	 Indian Vanaspati Producer Association
	 Ajanta Realtech Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as Swift Relocations Pvt. Ltd.)
	 Chander Prabhu Financial Services Ltd.	
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ii)	 Key Managerial Personnel:
	 Sushil Goyal, Managing Director
	 Abhey Goyal, Whole Time Director
	 Jaigopal sharma, Chief Financial Officer			  (appointed effective 30.05.2014)
	 Priya pandey, Company Secretary 			   (resigned effective 19.05.2015).
	 Kapil, Company Secretary				    (appointed effective 30.05.2015).

B	 Transactions during the year and Balances Outstanding as at the year end in respect of transactions entered into 
with the Related Parties: 

Particulars
Key managerial personnel

Enterprises in which key 
managerial personnel & their 

relatives have significant 
influence

Total

31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

INCOME            

Interest on loan:            

Dhruv Globals Limited  -  -  -  759,722  -  759,722 

EXPENDITURE            

Remuneration              

Mr. Sushil Goyal  3,000,000  2,800,000  -  -  3,000,000  2,800,000 

Mr. Abhey Goyal  1,200,000  1,200,000  -  -  1,200,000  1,200,000 

Mr. Jaigopal Sharma 368,700  338,220      368,700  338,220 

Ms. Priya Pandey  29,677  200,000      29,677  200,000 

Mr. Kapil  220,000  -      220,000  - 

Membership Fee:            

Indian vanaspati Producer Association  -  -  63,181  69,805  63,181  69,805 

Advertisement:             

Indian vanaspati Producer Association  -  -  11,000  11,000  11,000  11,000 

Interest on Unsecured Loan:            

Ajanta Realtech Private Limited (Formerly 
known as Swift Relocations Pvt Ltd.)

 -  -  -  238,853  -  238,853 

Purchase of Stores:            

Dhruv Globals Limited  -  -  373,030  397,266  373,030  397,266 

LOAN FUNDS (Liability)            

Unsecured loan taken during the year:            

Ajanta Realtech Private Limited (Formerly 
known as Swift Relocations Pvt Ltd.)

 -  -  -  11,100,000  -  11,100,000 

GDF Exports Pvt.ltd,   -  -  1,200,000  -  1,200,000  - 

Unsecured loans repaid during the year:            

Ajanta Realtech Private Limited (Formerly 
known as Swift Relocations Pvt Ltd.)

 -  -  -  27,861,289  -  27,861,289 

G.D Ferro Alloys Private Limited      -  6,250,000  -  6,250,000 

GDF Exports Pvt.ltd,      1,200,000  -  1,200,000  - 

Investments:            

Ajanta Realtech Private Limited (Formerly 
known as Swift Relocations Pvt Ltd.)

 -  -  13,110,000  -  13,110,000  - 

LOANS AND ADVANCES (Asset)            

Loans given during the year:            

Loans repaid during the year:            

Dhruv Globals Limited  -  -  -  20,000,000  -  20,000,000 

BALANCES OUTSTANDING:            

Current Maturities of Long term debts            

Ajanta Realtech Private Limited (Formerly 
known as Swift Relocations Pvt Ltd.)

 -  -  -  219,938  -  219,938 
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Particulars
Key managerial personnel

Enterprises in which key 
managerial personnel & their 

relatives have significant 
influence

Total

31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Investments:            

DG Estate Private Limited   -  -  14,725,000  14,725,000  14,725,000  14,725,000 

Ajanta Realtech Private Limited (Formerly 
known as Swift Relocations Pvt Ltd.)

     13,110,000  -  13,110,000  - 

Dhruv Globals Limited  -  -  3,680,500  3,680,500  3,680,500  3,680,500 

Sundry Creditors            

Dhruv Globals Limited      46,530  49,250  46,530  49,250 

CORPORATE GUARANTEE OUTSTANDING            

Guarantee issued in favour of bank on behalf 
of Dhruv Globals Limited

 -  -  698,000,000  702,300,000  698,000,000  702,300,000 

Guarantee issued by Dhruv Globals Limited 
and DG Estates Pvt Ltd in favour of bank on 
behalf of the company

 -  - 1,200,000,000  1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000 

37	  Segment Reporting:

	 The only segment identified by the company during the year under report is Vanaspati and Refined oil segment, which forms 
the basis of review of operating performance by the management. In line with the practice and considering the nature of the 
materiality in operations, the dealing in shares/securities has not been reported as a separate segment. Accordingly the segmental 
information as required in accordance with the Accounting Standard-17 as specified in the Companies Accounting Standards 
Rules, 2006 is not given, as there is only one segment of the company.

38	 Operating Lease:

	 Lease Payments:	
a)	 The Company has entered into Lease transaction mainly for leasing of Office/Residential Premises including godown and 

company leased accommodation for its employees. Terms of lease include terms of renewal, increase in rent in future 
period and terms of cancellation. 

b)	 The operating lease payments recognized in Profit & Loss A/c Rs.12,26,090/- (P.Y.Rs.18,34,170/-) for the lease which 
commenced on or after April 01, 2001.

c)	 General description of Lease terms:							     
i)	 Lease payments are made on the basis of agreed terms;
ii)	 The premises are taken on operating lease for a period of six years.

39	 Forward exchange Contracts entered into by the company and outstanding :

	 For hedging currency related risk:

	 Nominal amount of forward exchange contracts entered in to by the company and outstanding as at 31.03.2016 Rs.142,906,463/-
P.Y. Rs.115,478,892/-. 

40	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to conform to current year’s 
classification.

As per our report of even date 			   For and on the Behalf of Board of Directors
or TAS Associates	
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 010520N

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-	  Sd/-
	 Subodh Gupta	 Sushil Goyal	  Abhey Goyal 
	 (Partner)	 (Managing Director)	 (Whole Time Director)
	 M.No.: 087099	 (DIN : 00125275)	 (DIN : 02321262)

		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Jai Gopal Sharma	 Kapil
Dated : May 30, 2016	 (Chief Financial Officer)	 (Company Secretary)
		  (PAN : ANYPS9660D)	 (M.No. : 29508)
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